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SENATOR BOB SMITH (Co-Chair): Would everyone take a
seat, please.

On behalf of Co-Chairman John Wisniewski and myself, we
want to welcome everyone to the organizational meeting of the Joint
Legislative Committee on Governmental Consolidation and Shared
Services.

I'd like to congratulate Senate President Richard Codey and
Speaker Joe Roberts for their leadership in convening this special session to
address property taxes.

I'm very pleased to serve as Co-Chair of this Committee with
Assemblyman John Wisniewski, and I look forward to working with my
Senate and Assembly colleagues on both sides of the aisle.

I also want to thank everyone who assisted the Committee with
preparations for today’s hearing, and in particular the Office of Legislative
Services for working so hard to prepare today’s presentation, which is,
basically, a very informative one.

The Committee has been charged principally to evaluate the
allocation of responsibility for providing services among municipalities,
counties, and school districts, and to formulate proposals that would
promote consolidation and service sharing among those entities. Let me
emphasize: Absolutely everything is on the table.

Our current governmental structure has evolved over several
centuries. The organizing princ’iples that led to the creation of 567
municipalities and 616 school districts are outdated and inefficient. Home
rule was a great 19th century concept. In the 21Ist century, it has lead to

the highest property taxes in America. We have been given a great
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opportunity to challenge the existing structure, but it will not be easy. We
will encounter governmental, institutional, and cultural impediments to our
success. And we have all heard the skeptics who dispute the suggestion that
there are significant savings to be obtained through consolidation and
shared services. It is obvious, however, that no single arrangement is going
to yield huge savings.

We will not see meaningful reduction in property taxes if this
initiative is limited to just a few towns scattered among a few counties
throughout the state. We need a bigger vision. New Jersey’s system of 616
independent school districts, each with its own administrative,
transportation, labor, health care, and insurance costs is the most inefficient
system in the country.

According to the Education Commission of the States, 11 (sic)
states of this country -- Alabama, Florida, Georgia, Kentucky, Louisiana,
Maryland, Nevada, South Carolina, Tennessee, Utah, Virginia, and West
Virginia -- have some form of county-based school systems, either apart
from or in conjunction with additional school districts for their larger urban
centers. Each of these states spends thousands of dollars less per student
than we do here in New Jersey. They are able to spend less because their
systems are more efficient in scope and in structure, allowing them to do a
better job of delivering educational services to students. I believe that
maintaining our current system of 616 autonomous districts is inefficient
and wasteful, and it only promotes duplication and inequality.

Consolidating New Jersey’s school districts would put our
public schools on a rational path to better management. Consolidation

would dramatically reduce costs by eliminating duplication of services,
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including transportation, maintenance, and purchasing. The savings from
consolidated transportation services alone justifies regional or county-based
school districts. A thorough examination of our educational system in New
Jersey and a serious consideration of consolidation of our 616 public school
districts is long overdue. We need to have this serious debate on the cost
and delivery of education for our children if there’s ever to be a stabilization
or reduction in property taxes.

As we will see from the presentation that OLS will present
shortly, efforts to promote consolidation or shared services has been
extremely haphazard in New Jersey. One of our goals must be to create a
framework for a sustained effort at developing and implementing
consolidation and shared service arrangements. But immediate savings
should not be the only measure of whether these arrangement are
worthwhile. Our charge is to propose reforms that will not only reduce
costs, but also improve services and restrain property tax growth on an
ongoing basis.

So let’s begin today with an open mind and a strong
commitment to recommend meaningful and lasting change -- not for the
sake of change alone, but because change in New Jersey is long overdue.
Aside from governmental, institutional, and cultural impediments, there will
be real political obstacles to overcome as well. Let us commit ourselves to
each other, to put aside partisan, regional interests so that we can face all of
these obstacles together.

We will begin today’s hearing with a presentation by the Office
of Legislative Services. That will be followed by testimony from several

individuals who have on the ground experience in developing and
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promoting these arrangements. At future hearings, the Committee will hear
testimony from experts and address a wide variety of related topics,
including Speaker Roberts’ CORE proposals of potential consolidation or
reorganization of State government functions.

And again, let me emphasize -- everything is on the table.

The Committee also understands that the public has much to
say on these topics. We plan to have a series of public hearings in locales
outside the State House to enable the public to fully participate in this
special session. I am confident that this Committee will give these issues
the intensive and thorough analysis that they deserve, and will work
together to formulate proposals for presentation to the entire Legislature. I
hope today’s hearing will shed some light on this crucial topic, and we will
begin this really important dialogue.

It's my great pleasure to serve with a very distinguished
Assemblyman from the 19th Legislative District, and I congratulate Speaker
Roberts for making the best possible choice. Let me turn the meeting over
to Assemblyman John Wisniewski, my Co-Chair.

ASSEMBLYMAN JOHN S. WISNIEWSKI (Co-Chair):
Thank you, Senator Smith.

I'd like to make an opening statement, and afterwards invite
the other members of the Committee to make their opening statements,
before we enter into hearing the Office of Legislative Services’ presentation,
which will take approximately a half hour.

Let me just say in the beginning that I look forward to the
opportunity to examine this issue thoroughly and to engage in what

promises to be a very challenging and, hopefully, productive endeavor. Let
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me acknowledge Speaker Joe Roberts for giving me the opportunity to serve
on this Committee and to be one of the two Co-Chairs, along with Senator
Smith.

I also want to say that it is a privilege to be able to serve
alongside, with my fellow Middlesex County legislator and Co-Chair,
Senator Bob Smith. He is more than a veteran lawmaker. For more than a
decade, Senator Smith has been a leader in the area of school consolidation
and government reform.

I also look forward to working with all of my colleagues on this
panel -- Assemblyman Gordon, Assemblyman Malone, Senator Kyrillos, and
Senator Karcher. Both sides of the aisle, both political parties bring to this
debate much-needed expertise, commitment, and concern for the
betterment of this State, and the ability to move this issue forward. And I
believe that we need to operate in a true spirit of bicameral bipartisanship,
and that is the way we’ll be able to move this issue forward.

To the ladies and gentlemen who have come to observe today,
or who may be listening at home on the Internet, this Committee’s
challenge is nothing short of daunting. We have been given broad
instructions with a very difficult task. First, we are to review and craft
legislative proposals that would ease the ability of local governments to
achieve cost savings through shared services and regionalization. As the
basis for this work, this Committee is to use the CORE reform outline that
Speaker Roberts advanced earlier this year. CORE has a variety of
elements: Streamlining State laws that currently protect the status quo of
excessive local units, removing Civil Service barriers that impede

regionalization and service sharing by local governments, and tying local aid
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to efficiency. These are all very good ideas and good starting points for this
Committee’s work.

The CORE reform plan should not be an end game for
achieving property tax reform. In fact, I'm sure that every member on this
Committee has ideas that could be considered to help our citizens realize
tax savings. So the second charge of this Committee, under the enabling
resolution, is to consolidate or eliminate State government agencies,
commissions, and functions. In essence, we must be willing to subject State
government to the same type of belt-tightening efforts that we are asking of
local government entities. This is a process that is desperately needed.

New Jersey has 566 municipalities and over 600 school
districts, 186 fire districts, 21 counties, and 300 local authorities. Do the
math. That’s 1,389 different entities that have the ability to levy taxes.
This bloated and Byzantine system is the byproduct of our State’s love
affair with the notion of home rule.

And to echo the comments of Senator Smith, home rule may
have been a very popular and timely notion in the 19th century; this
Committee needs to reexamine its relevance in the 21st century. And while
I concede that the principle of home rule does have its virtues in local
identity, the New Jersey brand of it has become unacceptable, indefensible,
and unsustainable.

Like all of my colleagues on this panel, I recognize that the
defenders of the status quo of home rule are already gearing up to sidetrack
this reform effort. But I, for one, want to state from the outset that this
Committee was not created for the purpose of winning a popularity contest.

It was created for the purpose of initiating and executing change. To
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achieve this, I implore all of our Committee members, and most
importantly those in the public, to keep open minds, to think outside of the
box of home rule and our traditions, and to firmly put the public’s interests
over special interests.

The need for reform is compelling and mounting. It is
evidenced by this year’s school elections when New Jersey voters rejected
almost half of all school budgets. It is evidenced by statistics that show
increasing numbers of families and businesses pulling up roots and moving
elsewhere. And it is evidenced by a poll -- the most recent in the Sunday
Bergen Record -- that showed an increased public acceptance of shared
services and regionalization strategies.

This Committee has a big task and has a firm deadline --
November 15 -- to come up with a legislative action plan. Together, we
must work to create results that will have a real positive impact on this
state. We have been given a unique opportunity to change the history of
this state to make this state a better place for ourselves and our children to
live in. These results can create real property tax relief and reform for all of
our citizens. Ilook forward to working with all of you to accomplish that.

Thank you.

SENATOR SMITH: Let me ask if Senator Kyrillos has an
opening statement to make?

SENATOR KYRILLOS:  Very good.  Thank you, Mr.
Chairmen.

Good morning.

I think we would all agree that traditionally, historically, New

Jersey has been a great place to live. A strong economy has offered plenty
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of good jobs, fine public schools; easy access to New York, to Philadelphia,
to the coast, and the environs. Whether it remains a good place to live in
the future years to come hangs in the balance.

Unfortunately, we can no longer ignore the fact that our State
has become a bureaucratic nightmare. Government has become the growth
industry in New Jersey. State spending has increased 37 percent in the past
five years. Spending at the local level has almost matched that pace.
During the past five years, government payrolls have swelled, adding nearly
50,000 people, while New Jersey businesses shed nearly 120,000 high-
paying business services and manufacturing jobs. The productivity growth
in the private sector that has allowed the American economy to remain
competitive and prosperous has bypassed our New Jersey government.

We have, as you have very well stated, Mr. Chairman -- both
Co-Chairs -- too much government, too many overlapping layers, municipal
and county governments, school boards, local and county boards, and
authorities. All of this redundancy increases the opportunity for abuse and
for corruption, I might add. And of course, it is very, very costly. The past
five years has seen 12 billion in higher State taxes, 35 percent higher
property taxes. It has made New Jersey an increasingly unaffordable place
to live, to raise a family, and to retire. It has made New Jersey an
inhospitable place to start or to expand a business.

We're at a tipping point. New Jersey is at a tipping point. Our
system of governance, our structure is not sustainable. And many have
warned that our state is already, from a private-sector point of view, in an
economic death spiral. This session must -- must -- start a revolution that

reforms how all levels of government in New Jersey operate and interact.
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We’ve got to come to grips, citizens included, our constituents included,
with a basic truth: that we would never invent New Jersey as it is organized
today if we were starting from scratch.

We need to look at how services are provided and paid for
through a new pair of glasses. We need to let go of old ideas and prejudices
and examine ideas that, in the past, have made many of us uncomfortable.
Simply put, we can do more with less if, as you have both noted, we rise
above local turf battles, rise above partisanship. And I know that I'm
committed to make that happen. There are a lot of ideas out there. In the
past legislation that I have offered, that has proposed creating a nonpartisan
panel, along the lines of the Federal Military Base Closing Commissions of
recent years, to compel municipalities -- ultimately compel municipalities,
and school districts, and police departments, and other public organizations
to merge. The Legislature would get an entire list for an up or down vote.
In addition, I'd propose regionalizing school purchases, and basically
bifurcating all nonacademic decisions to county-based school districts so
that local school districts can take advantage of economies of scale.

I hope both of these ideas are seriously examined during the
process. There’s no shortage of proposed solutions to our property tax
predicament. I hope we can move forward with the proper attention to all
of these ideas.

Mr. Chairmen, committees are too often the final resting place
for those good ideas. In a parity of political leaders’ feudal attempts to
solve problems, T.S. Eliot asked, “What shall I cry? The first thing to do is
to form the committees: the consultative councils, the standing committees,

select committees and subcommittees.” This must not be the case for this
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Committee. Today marks the start of a change, and nothing we have done
or are likely to do as legislators is as important as what we have to
accomplish in the next few months. We are here to act. We must face up
to a problem that has been decades in the making -- centuries in the
making, perhaps. And we can’t ignore it any longer. It’s time that we must
put the common interest ahead of special interests. This Summer session
and the months thereafter must be a season of action. It must be a catalyst
for the revolution that overhauls New Jersey’s government from top to
bottom. Anything less will be a failure.

I thank you for your time.

ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI: Thank you, Senator.

I'd like to, next, call upon Assemblyman Gordon for opening
comments.

ASSEMBLYMAN GORDON: Thank you, Mr. Chairmen.

Co-Chairs Wisniewski and Smith, distinguished colleagues,
ladies and gentlemen, good morning.

It’s an honor to have this privilege to serve on this Committee,
and I want to thank Assembly Speaker Roberts for giving me the
opportunity to participate in this special session on property tax reform.

The headline of last Sunday’s Bergen Record (indicating paper)
conveys the urgency of the task before us -- people are “Desperate for a Tax
Break.” And it’s no wonder. In my part of the state, North Jersey,
property taxes rose three times faster than personal income over the last five
years. Without fundamental reforms, New Jersey will become unaffordable
for the middle class. All of us understand that our patchwork of

jurisdictions is at the root of the problem. New Jersey is plagued by gross
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inefficiency and rampant duplication. From little Wildwood Island in Cape
May -- a 4.5-square-mile beach -- with four municipalities, nine firehouses,
and more fire trucks than the city of Trenton; to the 70 towns of Bergen
County which, according to published reports, have more fire equipment
than the five boroughs of New York -- a city with almost 10 times more
people.

Government has been a growth industry in New Jersey for too
long. It’s time we took steps to get this spending under control. Our
patchwork of more than 1,300 government entities drives up costs and
leads to duplication, inefficiency, and public disenchantment. And the
State has not helped the situation. Previous Legislatures and governors of
both parties have created a system of confusing, contradictory, and
ultimately counterproductive laws that are compounding the property tax
problem.

For example, we currently have over 200 laws that are supposed
to promote service sharing, regionalization, and efficiency. But instead of
producing positive results, all these laws give us -- it’s more of the same. In
the last 30 years, there has only been one municipal merger, and that took
an entirely separate act of the Legislature.

As I interpret our mandate, this Committee is to provide our
residents and local officials with new tools and strategies to cut this waste
and to foster efficiency. We already have several worthy strategies to
consider. As Speaker Roberts advocates in his CORE reform plan, we can
remove the many statutory and regulatory barriers to resource sharing.

Similarly, we could provide substantial financial incentives to promote new
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government partnerships through mergers and sharing agreements. And we
could overhaul counterproductive Civil Service rules.

While I am supportive of the CORE plan, I want to assure
everyone that I am not operating from a preconceived set of outcomes.
Nobody has cornered the market on new ideas. Indeed, my own experience
as a management consultant, with nearly 30 years in the shared services
field, has taught me that significant creativity can be found among local
officials around the state. Our goal should be to unleash this creativity.

My only prejudgment in this ambitious endeavor is that change
is needed. The status quo must give way to reform. Today is the beginning
of what promises to be a constructive process. To this end, I look forward to
moving deliberatively, not destructively, and changing the way government
operates in New Jersey. We undeniably will face some daunting challenges
in this undertaking -- from confronting home rule to reducing State
government. But given the increasingly daunting property tax burdens our
citizens face, this Committee has an unshakeable mission to overcome the
challenges and the obstacles. I pledge to work as hard as possible with all of
you in accomplishing this objective. There is no substitute for action. The
status quo is not an option.

Thank you very much.

ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI: Thank you, Assemblyman.

I'd like to now call upon Assemblyman Malone.

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: Thank you very much, Co-
Chair Wisniewski, and I'd like to congratulate, also, Senator Bob Smith,

who will be co-chairing this. This is, I think, the opportunity of a lifetime
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for all of us, and I am extremely proud to be selected by Leader DeCroce to
be on this Committee with the rest of you.

I think that, also, we ought to congratulate Governor Corzine,
Senate President Codey, and Speaker Roberts for really bringing this thing
to fruition. I think that this is a long time in coming, and I think it’s
absolutely necessary that we, basically, come to a conclusion in this process
that makes the people in the State of New Jersey proud of us.

Look, I'd be remiss if I didn’t say what the real backdrop of
“most of this is. It really is a concern that individuals may have -- that they
may end their political career by coming up with some decisive decisions to
cure the ills of the State of New Jersey. I think we all know that, and I
think if you’ve, in some way or shape or form, asked to be on one of these
committees, I think you fully realize that this could be career altering. I
think it takes courage, and it takes our courage to move forward. Because if
we do not move forward, surely the people in the State of New Jersey are
going to do it for us. I think the sword over our heads is to perform the way
we’ve been elected and, I think, to form a process in which we can interact
with the public, get good solid input, and make some very sound
recommendations, without regard for the unrealistic boundaries that we
currently have in the State of New Jersey and the extremely parochial
attitudes that we have in our local entities.

Serving 24 years in local government, I was probably guilty of
that as much as anyone else. So I fully understand the thought process of
small government. But that doesn’t mean we can’t move forward as we go

through this process. It’s going to mean people’s thought processes are
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going to have to change. Because if we don’t change, we will not be able to
afford to live in the State of New Jersey.

I don’t think it’s about paper. I think most of us in this room
know what we have to do. It really is about courage to do the right thing.
The truth is before us. I just sincerely hope that we take the opportunity to
seize that truth and do what is right for the taxpayers in the State of New
Jersey, and give them something that they can be proud of. Because if we
don’t, the agony of the first week of July will be nothing compared to the
agony of the next six months if we don’t perform the way the public expects
us to.

Thank you very much, Mr. Co-Chair.

SENATOR SMITH: Thank you, Assemblyman Malone.

We've asked the Office of Legislative Services to put together
some basic information for -- both for the public’s information and for our
information as well. Mr. Robert Levin of OLS has a presentation to make.

Mr. Levin, if you'd take it away.

ROBERT H. LEVIN: Good morning, Co-Chairmen Smith and
Wisniewski, distinguished members of the Joint Committee, Committée
Aides, and members of the public. I am Robert Levin, Section Chief of the
Local Government Section of the Office of Legislative Services, the
nonpartisan agency of the Legislature. I am here today at the request of the
leadership of all four partisan offices to present factual information
concerning consolidation, and regionalization, and shared services.

This presentation starts with the assumption that
consolidation, regionalization, and shared services are activities that the

Legislature wants to encourage. We next list the pros and cons of the three
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traditional methods to increase their use. Finally, we examine
consolidation, regionalization, and shared services in detail, describing the
various laws available today that enable units of government to merge or to
work together cooperatively.

Also included are some examples, but we’ve tried to keep those
to a minimum and can, of course, provide more detailed information later,
or direct this Joint Committee to various experts in areas into which you
want to delve more deeply.

(begins PowerPoint presentation)

My first slide contains an overview of information that several
of the speakers, several of the Joint Committee members have already given.
We have 21 counties; 566 municipalities; 616 school districts, of which 23
are currently non-operating; some 300 local authorities; 186 fire districts.
The taxing districts -- which does not include local authorities -- add up to
1,389 different possible taxing districts.

We've had many studies that basically conclude that shared
services, regionalization, and consolidation are good ideas to reduce local
property taxes, by reducing costs that are funded through the property tax.
Many of these studies have recommended that shared services and
regionalization be more aggressively promoted. We’ve come up with three
approaches to increasing shared services, regionalization, and consolidation.
They are education and promotion; incentives, which are also known as
carrots; and mandates, which are sticks.

The challenges presented by the education and promotion
approach are: it’s very difficult to overcome local inertia to get moving on

something; also, it requires a large amount of technical assistance to the
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municipalities or the other local units wanting to do these activities -- they
have to know who they can merge with, who’s doing what, who has
expertise, what assistance is available.

The carrot approach provides rewards and incentives that
ultimately may be very expensive to the State. It also encourages
dependency on State aid. Once you award a local unit money for
something, it’s very difficult to take that money away without them having
to increase property taxes to fill in the budget gap.

The stick approach is politically unpopular as an affront to the
notion of home rule. We now have a State Mandate, State Pay provision in
the Constitution, so the Legislature cannot require schools, municipalities,
and counties to do things that are not paid for except out of property taxes,
except under certain limited situations. Also, a legislative mandate may be
too broad. It may not be the best option for every local unit. So when
we’re thinking about these things, we may have to think about creating opt-
outs so that the local units that are already operating efficiently don’t have
to participate in something 'that will make them operate more inefficiently.

Consolidation is the merging of two or more Jocal units into a
single local unit. The most recent example, in the "90s, was Pahaquarry and
Hardwick, up in Warren County.

So why would local units, school districts, want to consolidate?
You have the economies of scale and increased efficiencies: fewer
government employees per person to perform services. That intuitively
makes sense. It will save money. Also, you have lower per unit costs,
decreasing costs to supply certain services. So, at a gut level, this seems to

make sense, and most political leaders would want to do this.
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There are barriers to consolidation though: First of all, there’s a
sense of community that many people don’t want to part with -- the notion
that their home rule rights are being violated if Trenton comes down with a
mandate telling them to merge with someone they don’t want to merge
with. There’s a fear of a loss of local political power, the loss of municipal
offices and jobs. There’s the difficulty of the consolidation process. One of
the big hurdles there are Civil Service issues. One municipality may be
Civil Service, the other may not be. Well, you have to do something to get
those employees on the same page. There are potential cost increases.
Usually there’s going to be a winner and a loser. Well, the taxpayers who
are losers have a right to fear property tax increases. And there may be
increased public employee salary obligations. Also, with respect to the loss
of municipal offices and jobs, there’s the whole issue of: What do you do
with the displaced workers? Finally, there’s adverse perceptions of the
neighboring municipality -- those other people on the other side of the
tracks. Communities have grown up with some anonymity towards each
other, and that would have to be overcome in some instances of
consolidation.

The consolidation laws are the Municipal Consolidation Act,
the Sparsely Populated Municipalities Consolidation Act, and Regional
School District Law. The Municipal Consolidation Act is a 1977 law that
provides very detailed procedures to consolidate two or more contiguous
municipalities. ~ When these municipalities join together, there are
provisions in that law for consolidating the school districts. It's a fairly

cumbersome process due to elected consolidation commissions, multiple
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studies that have to be performed, and voter referenda that have to be
carried out.

The Sparsely Populated Municipalities Consolidation Act is a
1995 law that was enacted to address the situation of Pahaquarry into
Hardwick. Pahaquarry, I believe, had seven residents at the time it was
consolidated. And that was not enough to run an efficient municipal
government. The law has very limited applicability -- one municipality
certainly has to be sparsely populated. And also, both municipalities have
to share the same form of government. Generally, when you're
consolidating municipalities, you won’t find municipalities next to each
other, all the time, operating under the same form of government.

This next slide lists selected attempts at consolidation -- the
ones that we did trace. In 1952, you had Vineland Borough and Landis
Township, and that was a successful consolidation. These others, I believe,
are attempts at consolidation that were unsuccessful -- at Princeton, East
Windsor, Oldmans Township, Manalapan, Chester, Hardyston, and
Franklin.

Regionalization is when local units within a geographic region
join to create a separate entity to provide a selected service. Some examples
of regionalization are regional health services, regional planning boards,
municipal utilities authorities, joint meetings, and regional school districts.

Regional health commissions stem from a 1938 law to permit
two or more municipalities to form a regional health commission. We have
seven regional health commissions serving 51 municipalities. The seven are
Mid-Bergen, Northwest Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Monmouth, Princeton, and

Middle Brook.
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The Princeton Regional Health Commission was established in
1976. It serves as the joint Health Department to Princeton Borough and
Princeton Township. It’s administered by both the borough and the
township. The officials there have estimated that they save $200,000 a
year, and I imagine that’s across both the township and the borough.

Regional planning boards are a planning board established and
appointed by two or more municipalities. The 1976 statute that authorizes
regional planning boards also permits regional board of adjustment, joint
building official, joint zoning officer, or other officials responsible for
performance of administrative duties in connection with any power
exercised pursuant to the Municipal Land Use Law.

They began using Princeton as an example, especially since it’s
the only regional planning board in the state. It covers the borough and the
township, and it develops and adopts the master plan, it reviews land use
applications, and recommends revisions to land use ordinances.

Municipal utility authorities provide regional water and sewer
services, and they also provide hydroelectric services. There are currently
53 operating in the state. An example is the Camden County Municipal
Utilities Authority. The Camden County Authority was established in
1972. It replaced old and obsolete municipal treatment plants throughout
the county. It constructed a regional collection system and modern
treatment facilities. Pollution of local waterways was reduced by 95
percent.

We next have an animal known as joint meetings. They were
enacted in 1952 -- the most recent version was enacted in 1952 -- as part of

a Consolidated Municipal Services Act. It’s any combination of two or
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more municipalities and counties contracting for joint operation of public
services, public improvements, works, facilities, or undertakings for up to 40
years. The joint meeting is underutilized but useful, because of oversight by
all participating entities. In a sense, it’s a partnership between these
municipalities. There are only a handful currently operating -- we have the
joint meeting of Essex and Union County. That was the original one, 1898,
and it was-- It’s a tribute to Mr. Sinclair of South Orange, who wrote a
letter to the surrounding municipalities saying he would like a joint meeting
to handle the sewage in the area. So that’s where the term comes from.
We have Madison and Chatham joint meeting, the Wildwoods Code
Enforcement joint meeting, Ridgewood 911, and the North Hudson Fire
and Rescue Agency.

This is a list of eligible activities of the joint meetings -- can
participate in: General government administration; health, police and fire
protection; code enforcement; assessment and collection of taxes; financial
administration; environmental services; joint municipal courts; youth,
senior citizen, welfare, social service programs.

The North Hudson Regional Fire and Rescue Agency started as
centralized communications/dispatch system, and then evolved into
centralized fire and rescue in 1999. It incorporates five towns: North
Bergen, Union City, Weehawken, West New York, and Guttenberg.
Together they are the fifth largest fire agency in the state, and the first to
cover multiple towns. For Fiscal Year '06-'07, their Regional Efficiency Aid
Program award, which will be discussed in a few slides, was nearly $9
million, and that aid goes to the taxpayers of the participating

municipalities. When this agency was put together, there were many initial
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problems, but the most salient were with regard to the rank of the official of
the firefighters and the Civil Service grade issues. I believe they were
mixing Civil Service, non-Civil Service municipalities, and that required
extensive negotiations between those municipalities.

Regional School District Law was originally enacted in 1931.
Regional school districts are governed like Type II school districts. That
means that there’s an annual budget that’s submitted to the voters of all of
the participating municipalities in the regional district, and there’s an
elected board of education. It usually consists of nine members, and those
members are apportioned by the county superintendent on the basis of the
number of inhabitants in each municipality. There are currently 70
regional school districts operating in the state.

Of the regional school districts, there are two basic types. You
have your all-purpose regional school district. =~ An example is the
Bordentown Regional School District. All-purpose means they run all of
the schools for the municipalities. Then you have your limited-purpose
regional school district, such as the Freehold Regional High School District.
That provides services to a particular -- or particular grade levels. For
instance, the municipalities may have school districts that run their own K
through 8, K through 9, and then after that the students are sent to the
regional high school.

To establish a regional school district or to withdraw from one,
you need an advisability study, you need a report submitted to and

approved by the Department of Education, and you also need voter

approval.
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We have had several instances of school districts that want to
deregionalize: In 2001, Lower Camden Regional; in 1996, Union County
Regional District. Currently, Seaside Park is seeking to withdraw from the
Ocean County Central Regional School District or to have it dissolved.
And generally, the reasons why they want to deregionalize is that one
municipality thinks it’s carrying a disproportionate share of the tax burden
to run the district.

Paying for a district -- the cost apportionment methods: 68 of
the 70 districts operate using the equalized valuation of taxable property.
That means we equalize the value of the property throughout all the
municipalities that are part of the district and apportion taxes on that basis.
The more recent districts -- Great Meadows Regional in Warren County
and the Somerset Hills Regional in Somerset County -- have used slightly
different methods. You have a proportional number of pupils enrolled in
the district. In other words, you're assessed a portion of the cost based on
the number of students enrolled, or, as in Somerset Hills, a combination of
the equalized value and the number of students.

There are studies suggesting that regionalization of schools may
reduce costs and may reduce educational disparities between districts.
Other studies say it doesn’t produce that much in savings and may
compromise the quality of education, and will certainly result in a loss of
local control.

The current disincentives to regionalization are: The process is
expensive and cumbersome. It may reduce State aid under the State
educational funding structure, and this is particularly a concern to the

lower-income districts.  Also, there’s little incentive for districts to
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regionalize with neighbors that have different characteristics, in terms of the
property wealth of the district and the demographics of the people living in
those districts.

Moving on to shared services, which is cooperation between
units of government to provide services to reduce costs. Shared services
makes the efficient use of specialization and expertise, and that helps
achieve economies of scale also. One unit may serve as the lead agency with
the others as clients. Alternatively, the units may pool their resources to
work jointly or cooperatively.

We handed out, today, an article that was in The Star-Ledger
this morning concerning West Orange -- West Orange weighs sharing of fire
services with Orange and Montclair. One of the points of the article --
which I won’t summarize the whole thing -- but it indicates that Orange is
suffering from an inability to adequately staff its fire department. So shared
services is a solution for that particular problem. You can’t find local staff?
Then regionalize and pool your resources, and then there are enough
qualified people to go around to perform the service.

Shared services also are known as interlocal services,
cooperative purchasing, shared administration. With regard to shared
administration, we share the administration of local officials. We have
group insurance contracts and we have joint insurance funds. Currently in
the state, we have 28 JIFs operating, and we have another six health
insurance funds, known as HIFs. One interesting facet of the joint
insurance funds is nonprofit housing entities may also be included in them.

An example of a joint insurance fund is the Garden State Municipal Joint
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Insurance Fund. It’s one of the largest in the state. It has nine member
towns. It serves 325,000 taxpayers.

The principal shared services laws on the books now are the
Consolidated Municipal Services Act, of which, as I said, joint meeting was
a part of. The Interlocal Services Act. The REDI program -- Regional
Efficiency Development Incentive, it’s now called SHARE -- SHaring
Available Resources Efficiently. The REAP program -- Regional Efficiency
Aid Program. That’s the one that I mentioned, that the fire department
was receiving tax credits for -- or I should say, the taxpayers in the districts
were receiving tax credits for. And we also have laws for shared
superintendents and business administrators of the schools.

This is a list of 12 common shared services -- animal control
down to tax assessors.

The REDI, or SHARE, program was recommended by the
Governor’s Property Tax Commission Report of 1998. It currently provides
three types of grants: The Implementation Assistance Grants, to help cover
start-up, transition, and implementation of new or expanded shared or
consolidated services; Feasibility Study Grants, to fund a portion of
research, planning, and development costs to assess shared services
opportunities; and the Regional Coordination Grants, to assist groups of
five or more local units to research, develop, and coordinate shared services.
Obviously, this is a special incentive to get larger groups together to
participate in shared services.

The REAP program was enacted in 1999 to provide incentives
to local units of government to enter into regional service agreements. A

point system was used to award aid that was applied directly as a credit to
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the property tax bill. Currently, it’s only funded in the budget to pay hold-
harmless aid to 14 municipalities. So there are no new REAP grants, and of
course, that’s because of budget decisions that have been made.

Shared administrators -- the top (indicating PowerPoint
presentation) is a site to the laws for shared school superintendents and
business administrators. And we also have shared municipal assessors,
which are a supplement to the municipal consolidation laws. There are 290
assessors functioning in the 566 municipalities. Some part-time assessors
serve up to eight different municipalities.

Cooperative purchasing is administered primarily through
regulations. It’s available to all local units, and generally one local unit will
act as a lead agency. There is over 100 cooperative purchasing groups
operating in the state right now, ranging from groups with two to three
members for individual services, to some with hundreds of members that
may have more general purchasing. Some current programs are the regional
cooperative pricing systems, energy aggregation, cooperative purchasing of
energy, county cooperative contract purchasing, and the State Cooperative
Purchasing Program. This information is available on the Department of
Community Affairs Web site.

The next slide is some information that’s available from the
Department of Treasury Web site about the State Cooperative Purchasing
Program. I recopied their initial paragraph that gives their statement of
purpose. With regard to the State program, many, many types of entities
can participate:  Municipalities, school districts, counties, authorities,

utilities, quasi-State agencies, county and State colleges, fire departments,
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volunteer fire departments, volunteer first aid and rescue squads, and even
the independent institutions of higher education.

The benefits of the State Cooperative Purchasing program, as
detailed on Treasury’s Web Site: Cost reductions, convenience, new
technology, communication/outreach. They have a dedicated professional
staff. They leverage many units participating -- the buying power of all
those units. Their staff gives individual attention to their members. It
provides flexibility and variety. The vendors that use this are qualified
according to their standards and the proven products. And there’s
consistency in the products that are purchased.

Part of the CORE proposal that this Committee is going to be
dealing with is A-51, of 2006. This was the Uniform Shared Services and
Consolidation Act. When this bill was put together, it attempted to
simplify municipal consolidation and shared service agreements, give
residents a direct means to initiate consolidation, unify procedures for.
shared services and consolidated service agreements, reallocate and update
principal laws to be more easily located and understood. So it’s an attempt
to bring all the tentacles of the octopus that we know as shared services into
one bundle.

I believe this Joint Committee is also going to be dealing with
the concept of taking over certain functions at the regional or State level.
We have examples of that. In 1992, by voter approval of a ballot question,
the county court system was taken over by the State. In 1989, by
legislation, county welfare equalization programs were taken over by the
State. And there’s currently pending legislation to transfer funding for

county prosecutors from the county to the State.
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Within your binders there is a section on pending legiélation
dealing with the issues that this Joint Committee is dealing with. We have
39 bills in the local government arena and 15 in the school arena. Synopses
of those bills are in the binder. It’s at the end of the binder.

My next slides are just listings of some of the significant
government reports that have been done over the past several decades on
these issues. The reports are in the binder. And you’ll be hearing from
experts from some of these departments, at later meetings, who can describe
more specifically what’s in the reports and how they apply today.

The binders before you contain a lot of other useful
informatioh relevant to the subject matter of the Joint Committee. And as
always, the Office of Legislative Services remains ready to assist you with
any specific inquiries.

I would, at this time, like to take an opportunity to thank the
OLS éommittee Aides, Brian McCord and Joe Blaney, and also Adrian
Crook of the Education Section, for their assistance in the preparation of
this presentation. And, also, Cindy Hespe of the Local Government Section
deserves recognition for her work in supervising the compilation of the
binders before you.

At this point, are there any questions?

SENATOR SMITH: Let me ask Committee members, are
there any questions for Mr. Levin?

Yes, sir, Assemblyman.

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: What I noticed when you talked

about the school districts, you didn’t mention how many sending school
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districts we have. Is that something that you could readily get your hands
on?

MR. LEVIN: We could provide information on
sending/receiving.

Just as a matter of background, the sending/receiving concept is
an alternative to regionalization. And, in fact, there is an example --
historical example of a regional school district that deregionalized -- or a
member pulled out because it was more advantageous, in terms of per-pupil
payment, to enter into a sending/receiving relationship, where you pay an
amount for your student to go to another district. And it was less of a tax
burden to do that than to be a member of the regional district.

Mr. Blaney.

MR. BLANEY (OLS Committee Aide): So do you want the
number of sending/receiving districts?

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: Yes, I'd be interested.

And I'd also like to know the rate of their payment to the
school for that sending relationship.

MR. BLANEY: Okay.

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: If that’s possible.

MR. BLANEY: Sure.

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: Thank you.

SENATOR SMITH: Any other questions?

Yes, sir, Senator.

SENATOR KYRILLOS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Perhaps now is the time to ask this question -- or perhaps

another time.
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I think, in your testimony -- opening remarks -- you pointed out
that we ought to look at other states and other localities around America for
advice to see how others have been better organized.

This was a helpful presentation. And I'm sure it took a lot of
time to pull it together. And it’s very concise and, I think, helpful for the
public at large to get their hands around this issue. But more telling, and
perhaps more beneficial to this group, I think, would be to have this kind of
summary for other state governments, or the local governments within
various jurisdictions and states, to see what kind of efficiencies and
economies of scale are being produced and reproduced around the country.

SENATOR SMITH: Absolutely. And as a matter--

SENATOR KYRILLOS: And it’s an enormous research task.

SENATOR SMITH: Yes.

SENATOR KYRILLOS: It’s embarrassing, probably to each
and every one of us, that, individually, we have not gone out there to look,
with specificity, at what we intuitively believe to be true in other places.

But how can-- What is the right methodology to go out there
and survey the landscape?

SENATOR SMITH: Well, one of the things we hope--
Actually there are two approaches to that, that we -- hopefully we'll
undertake both. First is, we're going to ask representatives of those
governments to tesiify before this Committee. It may end up being
telecommuting or teletestimony. But we’d like the -- every member of the
Committee to be able to ask questions about how their systems work, what
are the pitfalls, what are the advantages, etc. And then we can also ask our

staff to be in contact with the leaders of these systems to get -- ask a series
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of questions that would be helpful to the Committee so we can get some of
that baseline information. So hopefully we’ll use both methods.

SENATOR KYRILLOS: Well, I think it’s excellent to have
people from other places communicate with us. So I applaud you for that.

In the meantime, and thereafter, I think we ought to ask the
Office of Legislative Services to go out there and get in the weeds to see
how Maryland organizes their schools, for example.

SENATOR SMITH: Yes.

SENATOR KYRILLOS: Use the resources of the National
Conference of State Legislatures -- a fine group. Many of us are members
and affiliated with it. And we send New Jersey resources there to aid in
their ongoing research efforts, and to provide for us this kind of a
presentation -- and even more detailed than a PowerPoint, obviously -- so
we can make informed choices and informed -- develop informed opinions
as we march forward.

SENATOR SMITH: Great suggestion.

ASSEMBLYMAN GORDON: Mr. Chairman, just to follow up
on that comment, I think it would be particularly helpful if we could get
some benchmarking data, either through those organizations or by
calculating them ourselves through OLS.

I mean, see the number of fire trucks per thousand population.
There may be national or regional standards on these things, as well. I
think that data is out there. And it would be very helpful just to compare
our situation with what exists in places where the best practices are in place.

SENATOR SMITH: Great idea.

Chairman.
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ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI: Senator, thank you very
much.

Just one follow-up question: I couldn’t help but be struck by
the number of different legislative enactments that exist for both
consolidation and shared services. But then you provided a list, in
particular where municipalities have consolidated. ~And consolidation
appears to be the exception rather than the rule. And there was quite a long
list of municipalities that have flirted with the idea but, ultimately, decided
against it.

What 1 would be interested in seeing -- and for the
Committee’s benefit-- Is there any background data that OLS can provide
as to why, for instance, Vineland and Landis were able to successfully
consolidate, whereas these other municipalities that you cited were not able
to successfully consolidate? Was it about taxes? Was it about municipal
services? That, I think, would be instructive to this Committee, because,
clearly, the framework already exists, theoretically, for consolidation and
shared services. But it’s not utilized to the degree that may be necessary to
provide the tax savings. Why is that?

MR. LEVIN: I do believe that the Committee, in later
meetings, will be hearing from some experts that have looked at those issues
and do have that information for you. They can render opinions about
those issues.

ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI: In particular, why Landis
and Vineland was successful?

MR. LEVIN: Correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI: Okay, great.
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Thank you.

Any other members? (no response)

Thank you, Mr. Levin.

MR. LEVIN: You're welcome.

ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI: I would, next, like to call up
Thomas Sharpe, the Vice President of the Somerset County Business
Partnership; Jeff Horn and Gregory Bonin, chairmen of the Somerset
County Municipal Managers Association. If you gentlemen would take a
seat at the desk.

If, when you begin your testimony, you could identify yourself
for the benefit of the members of the Committee.
JEFFREY A. HORN: Surely, Mr. Chairman.

First of all, Chairman Smith, Chairman Wisniewski, Senators
Kyrillos and Karcher -- you're here -- Assemblyman Gordon, and
Assemblyman Malone, my name is Jeffrey Hom. I'm President of the
Somerset County Business Partnership.

. First of all, it’s an honor for the Somerset County Business
Partnership to appear before you at this, the inaugural meeting of the Joint
Legislative Committee on Government Consolidation and Shared Services.

Accompanying me today are Thomas D. Sharpe, the Business
Partnership’s Vice President of Public Affairs; and Gregory J. Bonin, a key
member of the Partnership’s Shared Services Coordinating Council, and the
Township Administrator for Branchburg, and the Borough Clerk for the
borough of Millstone.

The Somerset County Business Partnership is a coalition of

business, government, and nonprofit organizations organized to promote
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the county’s economic vitality and preserve its quality of life. The Business
Partnership addresses issues involving economic and community
development, small business, tourism and cultural arts, and public affairs, as
well as the networking and educational needs of its members.

The organization provides a number of diverse services
including: working with Somerset County municipal governments and
Somerset County government, as well as area school boards and educational
institutions to promote and facilitate shared services. We serve as the
County’s economic development agency. We further coordinate actions by
County and local governments and regional organizations in seeking Federal
funding for the County’s highest infrastructure project (sic), which is Route
22 in the county; promoting Somerset County as a destination for visitors
and tourists. And we also serve the needs of our 650 member
organizations, ranging in size from the 7,000 employees of the
Johnson&Johnson Somerset County companies, to single employee start-up
businesses.

The Somerset County Business Partnership plays a unique role
in facilitating shared services in the Somerset County region. We have a
10-year-plus history in promoting shared services. The program has grown
from a modest beginning, with the buy-in of Somerset County and most of
its 21 municipalities and educational institutions. Participating Somerset
County jurisdictions saved a total of $13.7 million through shared services
in 2005 alone. Key components of our success are: cooperative
communities and educational institutions; a strong steering committee of
dedicated public servants, elected and appointed County and local officials

and their staffs, all of whom are willing to help on all fronts. Further
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leveraging this effort are foundations and corporations willing to assist the
effort.

The Business Partnership houses and services the Somerset
County Shared Services Coordinating Council, consisting of officials of
participating jurisdictions. ~ The Business Partnership’s role involves
coordinating and facilitating the oversight function of the Coordinating
Council, providing research to determine common needs, developing
mutual agreements to fund feasibility studies, initiating dialogue to create
and fund local -- interlocal agreements for new shared services initiatives,
following up with each participant to ensure that they are providing the
necessary official actions required to move projects forward, educating new
officials within participating jurisdictions to keep them current and keep the
momentum moving forward; and facilitate successful implementation.

In addition, we monitor shared services efforts to ensure that
problems between jurisdictions are resolved before they become major
problems. The successes of our shared services program would not occur
without a dispassionate neutral party fulfilling the role I just described. By
design, the Shared Services Coordinating Council does not elect a chair, but
relies on the Business Partnership to play the role of facilitator to ensure
progress.

Our purpose in appearing here today is to briefly discuss our
successes -- and there have been many -- and some of our failed efforts in
sharing services among Somerset County government, many of our 21
municipalities, 20 school districts -- including the Somerset County
Educational Services Commission and the Somerset County Vocational-

Technical School, and Raritan Valley Community College. The successes
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that we will highlight are largely attributable to a dedicated group of county
and municipal elected officials, appointed County and municipal officials,
and education administrators and officials. Yet, the success of our program
could be significantly greater but for the existing barriers to shared services.

Mr. Sharpe will present you with more detailed information
and background on the Somerset County Business Partnership’s Shared
Services Program. And Mr. Bonin will follow with a review of the barriers
to shared services that we’ve encountered in our experience.

Following our testimony, well be pleased to answer any
questions that you may have.

ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI: Thank you.
THOMAS D. SHARPE: As Mr. Horn introduced me earlier, I
am Tom Sharpe, Somerset County Business Partnership’s Vice President,
working with Public Affairs, which does include our shared services
operations as a major part of my function.

Good morning, Senators, Assemblymen, Assemblywomen,
members of the audience.

I've been invited today to provide an overview of the impact of
shared services on a countywide level.

Somerset County has a long history of shared services
initiatives between the County, its municipalities, and its school districts.
In 1993, the Somerset Alliance for the Future, SAF, formed the Sorﬁerset
Shared Services Neighborhood Group to encourage local government

agencies and school districts to share services, for greater efficiency and

taxpayer savings.
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With strong support from the Somerset County’s State
legislators and the Somerset County Board of Chosen Freeholders, meetings
were held with mayors, administrators, and school officials. To support the
program, Somerset County government facilitated a County Challenge
Grant funded by the New Jersey Department of Community Affairs. And,
later on, SAF received a direct Regional Efficiency Development Incentive,
or REDI, grant funding for shared services feasibility studies.

To represent the County, and member towns, and schools, the
Somerset Shared Services Coordinating Council of County, municipal, and
education officials was formed to administer the program.

Specific objectives were set: number one, identify the most
promising services to share among municipalities, between towns and the
County, and among towns and school districts; number two, bring about
dozens of specific new shared services agreements; number three, remove
legislative barriers to shared services; four, expand communication among
towns, schools, and the County; and five, begin to serve as a state model for
expanding shared services.

In April 2000, the Shared Services Coordinating Council
recruited and hired a part-time shared services administrator. Now called
Somerset County Business Partnership Shared Services, that part-time
position has expanded into a full-time Business Partnership position, which
is my position, to coordinate shared services initiatives for the County,
Raritan Valley Community College, Somerset County Vo-Tech, the
Somerset County Educational Services Commission, the municipalities, and

the school districts.
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The challenge until now has been to effectively quantify success
of our shared services initiatives. The Business Partnership released a 2005
Taxpayer Savings Report -- which each of you has a copy, I believe --
documenting nearly $13.7 million in annual savings to Somerset County’s
taxpayers. The importance of tracking, quantifying, and documenting real
dollar savings as a benchmark for raising the bar cannot be overstated.
Since its December 2005 release, the Report has been circulated statewide
to promote Somerset County’s shared services as a strong model for
effective tax stabilization and government efficiency.

Another essential key to well over a decade of shared services
success in Somerset County is the continuing support from our Somerset
County Business Partnership investors and business members, who have
really come to know the value of local government shared services:
Johnson&Johnson, Sanofi-Aventis, Pfizer, Verizon, PNC New Jersey,
PSE&G, MetLife Foundation, and other member businesses of all sizes.
They have bought into the program, and it’s become a very successful buy-
in.

In order to help raise the bar for shared services statewide, the
Somerset County Business Partnership has been coordinating efforts with
other counties and organizations to provide resources and assistance:
Bergen County Shared Services Forum, in March 2006. Freeholder Peter
Palmer and myself were invited to that forum. Governor Corzine made an
appearance and a presentation, indicating his strong support for shared
services as a measure to reduce taxpayer burdens.

We’ve been meeting with the Hunterdon County Chamber of

Commerce and local governing officials. They have a Blue Ribbon
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Commission underway in Hunterdon County, now, to utilize some of our
successes, but to tailor it to their own needs to work for Hunterdon County.
I met recently with the Morris County Chamber Board of
Directors, who is looking to utilize the role of the Business Partnership as a
facilitator to help bring together more shared services in Morris County.

We recently received a call from the Gloucester County Council
to talk about a possible joint public safety proposal. And we have a very
successful model in Somerset County, the Somerset Ambulance Shared
Services Agency, in which the two lead towns, Manville, and Bridgewater,
and Raritan -- Manville and Raritan were the two big lead towns who have
each saved over $80,000 annually in providing effective daytime ambulance
service, saving lives and saving a lot of money.

Recently, Burlington and Cape May counties have indicated the
hiring of a full-time shared services administrator. I know that a part of
Speaker Roberts” CORE reform program is the establishment of a full-time
shared services facilitator or coordinator position in each of the 21 counties.
Of course I am biased, but I feel that that would be a very good move on all
of their pairts. The main point being that many of the smaller towns and
municipalities do not have the time, efforts, staff, or resources to do
interlocal programs to look into shared services and get things done. A
countywide facilitator can help bring the smaller towns together, the ones
who really need it, and make things happen.

Finally, we’ve had excellent coordination with the New Jersey
Association of Counties, the League of Municipalities, the New Jersey
Chamber of Commerce, NJBIA, and, most importantly, oﬁr legislative

leadership on both sides of the aisle. They have come to us in Somerset
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County, asked us to try to identify what some of the barriers are -- and Mr.
Bonin is going to go into a little more detail of that later on -- but, more
importantly, what some of our successes have been.

In concluding, the June 2006 Somerset County Business
Partnership/Somerset County Municipal Managers Association white paper
report, Removing the Barriers to Shared Services, further outlines the Somerset
County formula for success. I believe you each have a copy in front of you.
More importantly, it identifies some of the clear and present roadblocks
that inhibit or prevent our counties, towns, and schools from sharing.

For the audience, copies of the white paper are available on our
Business Partnership Web site, along with copies of the $13.7 million
report, and also a transcript of our presentations today. That Web site is
www.schp.org. We encourage you to go on the Web site, check into some of
the things that we’re doing. And we are willing to share our resources with
you at any time.

The Somerset County Business Partnership will continue to
offer ideas and resources to enable others in the State of New Jersey to
create highly productive, cost-saving shared services programs.

Speaker Roberts and I have spokén and discussed the idea with
the hope that -- to multiply the $13.7 million in annual savings by all 21
counties. You do the math. It could approach $300 million. It’s a small
amount of money, but every little bit helps.

I'd like to thank you for the opportunity to speak to this kick-
off session. And I would like to stay to offer any -- answer any questions --
any resources that anybody would like to have after the session.

Thank you.
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ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI: Thank you.

Mr. Bonin.

GREGORY J. BONTIN: Senator Smith, Assemblyman
Wisniewski, esteemed members of the Joint Legislative Committee, thank
you for having me here today.

My name is Gregory Bonin. And for the past seven years I've
been the administrator for Branchburg Township, in Somerset County, a
town of over 15,000 residents. As was mentioned, I also serve in a part-
time capacity as the Municipal Clerk for the borough of Millstone, in
Somerset County, a town with fewer than 450 residents. During my tenure
in government, I've worked for seven municipalities, each with its own
unique character and issues. As President of the Somerset County
Municipal Managers Association, I represent the appointed chief executive
officers of the 21 municipalities in our Association. It is with this
background that I appear before you today, and offer my thoughts and
comments on shared services and municipal consolidation.

As has been mentioned, the concept of shared services dates
well back into the ’70s, and probably before, when they were called interlocal
agreements. For the past 12 years, Somerset County has set the standard in
the area of shared services, from our initial efforts wherein we hired a
facilitator to promote shared services amongst our municipalities, to a
recent publication produced by the Somerset County Business Partnership
that shows Somerset County towns saving over $13 million.

We are proud of our accomplishments, and we look to expand
shared services even more. But we also are realistic. We know that there

are obstacles that stand in our way of achieving new levels of savings. And
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we know that shared services alone are not the panacea to solving the tax
burden in this state. Shared services is a means to hold back the deluge. It
is a patch on a broken system.

In June of 2006, the Somerset County Municipal Managers and
the Somerset County Business Partnership presented DCA Commissioner
Susan Bass Levin with a white paper entitled Removing the Barriers to Shared
Services. This paper was intended to not only highlight the efforts of
municipalities to reduce costs through shared services, but also to bring to
light some of the legislative barriers and hurdles that stand in the way of
advanced shared services and true savings to the taxpayers of New Jersey.
This paper was in no way intended to be a blueprint for solving our issues,
but a first step to open the discussions that might lead to some tax relief.

I'd like to share with you some of our successes, but also, more
importantly, some of our failures. Like many towns, Branchburg and our
local board of education have extensive shared services, including lawn and
field maintenance, facility use, and snow removal. We have taken this even
further by operating a joint fueling facility, and providing the board of
education’s transportation department free office space in our public works
garage.

In 2004, Branchburg Township and the Raritan Valley
Community College, which is located within the Township, entered into an
agreement that has the potential to save millions of dollars. In exchange for
having access to the local community cable channel, wherein the College
can promote its offerings and showcase its students, the Township receives
full access to the College facilities: ball fields, the pool, the theater, etc.

This is open to our residents and community groups. This agreement has
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provided the College with access to the public. And, by not having to build
new facilities, the Township has saved millions of dollars.

Recently, Branchburg, Franklin Township, and Montgomery
Township entered into an agreement where construction subcode officials
can be shared amongst each town when there is a need. One of the
townships involved needs only to call the other towns and request
assistance when it has a spike in services. This arrangement allows the
municipalities to address higher volumes of work without the additional
cost of hiring new employees. It also prevents the township from having to
consider layoffs when there is a short-term downturn in construction
activity.

Branchburg Township does all it can to ease the burden on our
residents. We continue to look to ways to reduce the property taxes, via
shared services and other cost-saving techniques. We are reluctant
participants in a ratables chase. Despite all our best efforts, we are not
always successful at stemming the tide. Property taxes continue to escalate
beyond the ability for the average citizen to handle the burden, let alone
retire on it. Too many obstacles are in the way for there to be a true tax-
reducing impact on the resident. |

A few years ago, Branchburg Township attempted to enter into
a shared service arrangement with the county of Somerset for health
services. We began discussions with the County, hoping they could take
over the functions of our health department. The goal was simple: reduce
our costs and provide a similar level of service to our residents.

As we entered this process, we thought this would be a no-

brainer. The work performed by local health agencies are almost identical.
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Of the 566 municipalities in 21 counties in the state, there are
approximately 118 health officer positions. This certainly means that there
are quite a number of regional health offices -- I think we heard that earlier
-- many of which are run by county government. |

In the end, what we found out was that the County wanted
more money to run our health department than it would have cost the
Township. There are laws in the books that mandate, when such a plan is
enacted, the county must hire the local health officer at their current salary.
Given that the County already employs a credentialed health officer, this
seems to fly in the face of our tax-saving efforts.

As I stated, Branchburg is a town of 15,000 residents in 22
square miles -- not large, an average town -- yet the Township is serviced by
four volunteer fire companies and one rescue squad. Last year, the
Township hired a consulting firm from Virginia to evaluate the Township’s
demographics, existing fire stations, and apparatus with the goal of receiving
a report that would recommend what is provided -- what is required to
provide fire protection for the residents.

The consultant spent a fair amount of time visiting the fire
companies, gathering data, and meeting with community leaders. When all
was said and done, the report recommended that the Township dismiss one
volunteer fire company and reallocate the existing equipment, the
equipment that we, the Township, bought for the fire companies.

With the reductions in annual contribution and savings
obtained without having to purchase redundant equipment, the Township
could have saved in excess of $100,000 a year, simply by following the

recommendation of the consultant. We haven’t taken that
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recommendation. Why? Because in the political world we live in, it’s
difficult for a governing body to stand up and dismiss a group of volunteers.
I suspect that, so long as elected and appointed officials desire to retain
their seats, a change as radical as this may not happen.

Shared services is not the cure. It is not the silver bullet that
will solve the problems of our state. We need a drastic overhaul on all
levels of government. There are so many other issues that force rising taxes,
most of which are out of the control of local government.

A few examples being: Binding arbitration -- settlements are
exceeding 4 percent. And these costs occupy a very large percent of
municipal budgets. How can I stay within cap? How can I keep my
property taxes down when salaries of that nature are going up higher than
the normal rate?

Unfunded mandates: Unfunded mandates are nothing more
than additional tax on our residents. New Jersey is one of the most
regulated states in the country. Every new rule and regulation handed
down by State and Federal governments, and each new law that the
municipalities must adhere to, are paid for by the residents of our
communities. The new stormwater regulations alone will cost Branchburg
Township over $100,000 this year. The money to pay for these mandates
must come from somewhere. I either have to reduce services or raise taxes.

Deer carcass removal: It costs the State approximately
$750,000 per year -- I believe in the current contract -- to remove deer
carcasses from all New Jersey roads. With the expiration of that contract
on October 1, 2006, that cost is now being placed upon the municipalities

and counties. Branchburg Township, being an average size town, will pay
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somewhere in the vicinity of $15,000 in the next year for deer removal.
Assuming an average cost of $10,000 per municipality, the cost to New
Jersey residents will be over $5 million next year, compared to the
$750,000.

Health benefits: We all know the costs are rising there.
Despite being in the same county -- state, county, and township, my
municipality cannot join with our board of education to purchase health
benefits as a larger group and enjoy the economies of scale. State law
prohibits this.

Call them shared services or interlocal agreements, the concept of
shared resources is not new. Through its 30-plus years of history, shared
services has done nothing to stop unfair rising property taxes. It has been
the proverbial finger in the dam. The dam is cracking, and we don’t have
enough fingers.

True tax relief will only come when all levels of government are
willing to change to better serve the residents of the state, when personal
interests are put aside so that people who have worked all their lives in the
state can retire in the state. We must take a holistic approach and examine
all facets of government: State, county, and local.

On behalf of the Somerset County Municipal Managers
Association, and as a resident of this state, 1 offer the following for your
consideration. Changing how the local governments do business is only one
piece of the overall puzzle, and we will not provide full cost savings that the
taxpayers of this state should expect. The State and county must also

change how they do business.
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We must consider reducing the units of government, even if
that means reducing levels of service. I expect most residents would accept
a reduced level of service if there was a substantial reduction in their
property taxes.

There has to be pension reform that takes care of the full-time
employees who have devoted their careers to government in New Jersey.

There has to be a review of State and Federal unfunded
mandates on municipalities.

There must be a more fair distribution of State aid to
municipalities and school districts.

As was mentioned, the State must create an incentive program
and reward municipalities that are active in shared services. You must not
reward those municipalities who resist or do not achieve a satisfactory level
of shared services.

The State must impose upon itself stringent budget restraints in
the same manner it imposes on municipalities. Only the State Legislature
can force all levels of government to make radical changes in our operations.

Municipality consolidation, in my opinion, can be a successful
tool to reduce the tax burden, and it can be done while, at the same time,
honoring the concepts of home rule.

Proper legislation can and will force all levels of government to
find creative solutions to achieving their goals.

Many of the items I have discussed are not new. And certainly
what I have put forth is not a complete list of areas that should be explored

or problems that exist. You already know many of the items I touched on.
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You probably know more than I do. But they bear repeating over and over
again until something is done.

I thank you for your time, and I stand ready to assist you if I
can.

ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI: Mr. Bonin, I just-- Two
things I wanted to ask a question about: One was something you just
finished your marks with, which, I think -- I'm paraphrasing -- is to respect
the notion of home rule -- you made, as part of your remarks.

Let me play devil’s advocate here. Why is it important to
respect the notion of home rule?

MR. BONIN: I think because the municipalities have come to
design themselves by themselves. They've created their nitch. They've
created a sense of community. I think that is the essence of home rule.
And I think that can be maintained through proper legislation and through

a proper solution.

ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI: But doesn’t that home rule
also, then, add cost? There’s a cost to home rule.

MR. BONIN: There will always be a cost to home rule,
absolutely. But there can be a countersavings.

ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI: The other question I had
was -- | think everybody has mentioned it, so whoever is appropriate in
responding-- The Somerset County Business Partnership released its 2005
Shared Service Savings Report, documenting $13.6 million in savings. I
don’t see it outlined here -- and I'm sure it might be. This binder is

voluminous. Can you give the Committee an example of where that $13
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million comes from? That’s a big number. First of all, was that one year’s
savings?

MR. SHARPE: Yes, that was a savings for 2005. And the
biggest -- one of the biggest ones I've already mentioned is the Somerset
Ambulance Shared Services Agency, which -- now that I have the town in
my mind-- Raritan and Manville are the two lead agencies, working with
three other towns. And, very efficiently, we're able to save at least $80,000
each, per year. And that figure is going up each year.

As you know, it’s more difficult all the time to be -- to have
daytime coverage, because you have so many volunteers working, and
people working at other jobs. So that’s a good answer to both save money
and provide better efficiency.

Some of the other areas: The Somerset County Improvement
Authority offers co-op purchasing opportunities. They worked with
Franklin Township to set up a trunk radio system with the County, which
serves as the County’s backup system. And Franklin Township saved
hundreds of thousands of dollars in that process. Franklin Township also
uses the purchasing of the improvement authority to purchase vehicles with
the County, thereby creating significant savings.

The Educational Services Commission was a big piece of those
savings, with agreements for fueling of buses, agreements with several
boards of ed for maintenance and servicing of buses.

So through a fairly detailed survey, with each one of our
entities who are participating in our shared services effort, we were able to

document specific areas of sharing. And those added up to $13.7 million at

the end of the year.
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ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI: And just one follow-up

question--

And I'm going to ask the members of the Committee if they
have any questions.

There are a lot of shared service agreements in what you've
detailed. Is there a danger of creating the bureaucracy of shared services in
our attempt to reduce costs -- create costs by all of the agreements and the
process that has to be engaged in to accomplish that?

MR. SHARPE: Well, I think once you have a prototype -- and
in Somerset County’s case, it’s a master interlocal agreement, with Somerset
County serving as the lead agency with all of the towns for department of
public works sharing. It’s a very successful agreement. We use that as a
model for all of our interlocal agreements. I think the important thing here
is that you should, and you must, have an interlocal agreement in place to
really specify what the terms of the sharing is, and also to cover any liability
or legal aspects. Particularly, the more towns you have involved, the more
importance there is to have an interlocal agreement in place. And, in most
cases, you need -- you should have a lead town who can take the lead and
make sure that everything is getting done as it should be.

And, again, that’s the importance, too, of having a county
facilitator -- someone in my role, in Somerset County, in each of the 21
counties -- to help the smaller towns and the larger towns to put together
the interlocal agreements, the resolutions, to put together the feasibility
studies to determine needs assessments. So that role becomes a very, very
good one at being cohesive and bringing things together. And then, as Greg

and Jeff will agree, to have a strong steering committee in the form of our
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coordinating council -- representatives of the school districts, towns, and the
county departments to be the steering committee, to make sure that you
continue this process and don’t let it lose any momentum.

ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI: Thank you.

I Dbelieve Senator Kyrillos has a question, and then
Assemblyman Gordon.

SENATOR KYRILLOS: Mr. Chairman, thank you. I wanted
to follow up on your question, I think, to the Administrator of Branchburg,
regarding home rule.

I think I heard you say that you can achieve consolidation and
maintain home rule at the same time. Did you say that?

MR. BRONIN: I believe home rule, as far as I can tell, is based
in the concept of trying to chart your own future, trying to plan, yourself, in
having a certain look in the community, and maintaining what you want
your community to be. I believe if we get creative, we can maintain that.
Municipalities can maintain their look, can maintain their own little
planning areas and planning design.

But, yet, you can eliminate, for example, my position in two
towns. You can eliminate the layers of government and the employees that
manage both those towns. I think you can maintain the basic elements of
home rule but, yet, eliminate the redundancies that happen between
municipalities.

SENATOR KYRILLOS: I think that’s a very good statement.
To summarize, you think people can determine their destiny, their future,

have confidence that their tax dollars are being spent as efficiently as
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possible in ways that they want, and services that they desire, and achieve
better economies of scale.

MR. BONIN: In Branchburg Township, I have two historic
districts. I have a central area that’s all new residential. We have different
planning designs for each historic district, for the residential, for the
industrial area. I think that can be done on a grander scale, even if you
combine municipalities.

SENATOR KYRILLOS: I appreciate those comments.

And yours, too, Chairman.

I think somehow we were all brought up in New Jersey to think
that this notion of home rule is a religion here in our state. Perhaps it is. I
think that most of my constituents -- I suspect most of the people that we
represent -- would rather just see things done more productively, more
efficiently, more inexpensively, to lower the tax burden, provide better
opportunities as a result of cooperation and efficiencies. That’s the kind of
home that they want to see ruled. And so we're starting to chip away at
these myths, if you will.

Thank you, sir.

ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI: Thank you, Senator.

Assemblyman Gordon.

ASSEMBLYMAN GORDON: Thank you.

I direct this to any member at the table. I don’t mean to put
you on the spot, but in the course of putting my comments together for
today, I read a story that appeared in the New York Times yesterday about --
comparing the increase in personal incomes with the increase in property

taxes in the New York suburbs, between 2000 and 2004. And it points out
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in that article that the sharpest increase in the region was in Somerset
County, an increase of 41 percent.

Given the apparent success of your shared services program,
what does that tell us? We understand that shared services is not the
panacea for property tax increases. Would your property taxes have risen
even more had the shared services program not been in place? How do
you-- There’s a disconnect here I hope you could address.

MR. HORN: Well, Assemblyman, you're absolutely correct.
Property taxes would have gone up that much more had the shared services
program not been in place. Somerset County is going through tremendous
growth.

Mr. Bonin, in Branchburg Township, I think, can attest to the
growth that’s taking place -- in Branchburg Township. Franklin Township,
which is in, I believe, Senator Smith’s district, has grown by leaps and
bounds. We are facing growth pressures in the northern part of the county,
as well. We are very fortunate that our tax base has expanded. Our
commercial tax base has expanded, as well, which keeps the county tax base
stable. Unfortunately, it places a burden on local taxation, as we’'re all well
aware. If we did not have shared services in place, that increase would have
been even greater.

MR. BONIN: Assemblyman, there’s not a day that goes by,
literally -- especially in the past month with the new tax bills -- that I don'’t
have residents at the counter asking why. And the only answer I can give
them is, “That’s just the system. It’s the system we have, and it’s the
system we have to work with.” I encourage them to check their assessments

with the assessor. I encourage them to review everything they can. And
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half those people -- more than half -- are senior citizens on a fixed income.
And we’ve all heard this before. But I see it on a daily basis -- saying they
can’t afford to live in the state anymore. And I think that’s the biggest

crime.
ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI: Assemblyman Gordon, are

you finished?

ASSEMBLYMAN GORDON: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI: Assemblyman Malone.

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: Thank you very much, Mr.
Chairman.

In your experiences, what has been the real reason some of the
towns-- Let’s say-- What town is adjacent to Branchburg?

MR. BONIN: Readington Township, Bridgewater, Somerville.

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: Okay. Let’s take Readington
Township. What’s the significant difference between Readington Township
and Branchburg?

MR. BONIN: Well, different counties.

MR. SHARPE: Different counties, for one thing.

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: Just forget--

MR. BONIN: For example, they have a regional health
department. The county services all their health needs.

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: Are the demographics basically
pretty much the same?

MR. BONIN:  The demographics are very similar in
Branchburg and Readington.

53



You Are Viewing an Archived Copy from the New Jersey State Library

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: I guess the point I'm trying to
}get at-- I think we all know why many towns-- For example, my own town
of Bordentown Township-- The kids go to school together. Everybody goes
to church together. We all go to the doctors together. We all do all these
things. Except for one group, and that’s the elected officials -- whether it’s
Princeton, Princeton Township, Burlington, Burlington Township,
Bordentown, Bordentown Township. In essence, almost an artificial
delineation is made by elected officials to keep people, sort of, I guess,
apart, and not really concentrating on the fact that we have so many things
that are similar and very few things that are different.

I just hope that -- and your comments -- I think many of them
were very good, and Tom’s were very good. I just hope we can just put
aside some of these artificial parochial attitudes. Because I don’t know
where we go if we don’t do that. And I know the League of Municipalities
has their sort of issues. I know the Council of Mayors have their issues.
Lawyers have their issues. Planners have their issues. Engineers have their
issues. Every group is going to have their issues as we go through this
process. But I just hope that we can just dismiss those as really not the
main focus of what we’re trying to do. If we’re going to go save tax dollars,
it’s going to mean that some of those individuals are going to have to be
sort of set aside and -- for the real, true purpose of what we’re here for.

So I would hope that we would aggressively look at the reasons
that keep us apart, and minimize those issues, and really focus in on what
really binds us together. And, in most cases, there’s a lot more that binds us
together in a regional and a consolidation mode than keeps us apart.

Thank you very much.
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MR. BONIN: I think if we're not willing to do that, we
shouldn’t even bother.

MR. HORN: Assemblyman, that is a very apropos comment.
And without naming towns, we're well aware of an example, locally, in
Somerset County, where a local fire company is pressing the town for a
piece of equipment to service a new development -- a redevelopment that is
taking place in that community. Yet, less than a mile away, in the adjacent
municipality, in the adjacent fire district, that piece of equipment is sitting
in a garage.

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: It’s like Bound Brook and South
Bound Brook. I mean, really, what is the significant difference between
those two towns?

MR. HORN: Two sides of the river.

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: That’s all.

SENATOR SMITH: Thank you, Assemblyman.

Gentlemen, thank you very much for coming in and sharing
with us some of your success in Somerset County.

Our last witness for the day is Reagan Burkholder, who is a
Principal with Summit Collaborative Advisors. Mr. Burkholder served as an
administrator or manager in New Jersey municipalities from 1974 until
2002, most recently for the city of Summit, and has done extensive work to
promote service sharing, and is working on a benchmark study of municipal
service delivery in nine municipalities.

When Mr. Burkholder is completed, and any questions are
answered to the Committee’s satisfaction, we're then going to adjourn.

We're going to ask Committee members to stick around. We need to set
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the meeting schedule for the next two months. So if you'd stay afterwards,
we’d be most appreciative.

Mr. Burkholder.

REAGAN BURKHOLDER: The Honorable Chairs, Senators,
members of the Assembly, ladies and gentlemen, good morning. And thank
you for the opportunity to address you today.

Over the course of 32 years, serving four local governments in
Connecticut and New Jersey, I've had the opportunity to deal with issues of
consolidation and shared services. I've also been involved, as the Chair
mentioned, in performance measurement at the local government level.
And I hope my experiences and observations will prove useful to you as you
consider this subject.

For the past couple of years, I've been working with a group of
nine New Jersey municipalities in an effort to measure municipal
performance and to establish benchmarks for improvement. The project
gathers and analyzes data in order to promote better decisions about costs,
resources, methods, and effectiveness.

The municipal managers and administrators in the group, and
their governing bodies, believe that measuring performance is a basic
function of well-run municipalities. However, either at the national level or
in New Jersey, only a miniscule fraction of local governments take the
concrete steps to measure their own performance. And I'll return to this
performance measurement issue after a few words about my experience with
consolidation and shared services.

There’s not a lot of useful history of consolidation in New

Jersey, as you've heard already this morning. So it’s useful to look
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elsewhere. My own government career began in Norwich, Connecticut -- a
consolidated city and town of 29 square miles and 40,000 residents.
Settled in 1659, Norwich’s zenith came during the heyday of the giant
mills, which, even to this day, line its three rivers.

The community still has not fully recovered from the abrupt
closing of those mills 50 years ago. Had the city and town not
consolidated, however, I'm sure that the old core city would have become
virtually unlivable as the surrounding town prospered. The key with the
consolidation is joint responsibility, joint concern, and joint problem
solving.

To get a more recent view of consolidation, we can look across
the oceans. In 1988, New Zealand’s 4 million residents were served by 678
units of local government, which sounds like an almost familiar number. A
year later, they had 86 local governments, a reduction of 87 percent.
Consolidation reduced the number of local government employees by 20
percent, from 44,000 to approximately 35,000.

Now, clearly, New Zealand is not New Jersey. In a
parliamentary nation with British traditions, local government exists by the
grace of parliament. In 1988, the central government dissolved all local
governments and told a commission to work it all out; coercion in its
ultimate form.

So I mentioned New Zealand’s experience to make this point.
Significant consolidation among New Jersey municipalities would probably
require more coercion than anyone in this room is likely to endorse. In

another way, the Federal Highway Administration coerces states to adopt
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various standards by threatening to withhold aid. If New Jersey wants its
aid, it must comply. |

I doubt, based on my experience, that positive incentives,
additional grant funds, will be enough to foster consolidation unless those
grants are huge. If the two Princetons, with joint schools, joint library, joint
planning, joint health services, joint recreation, invisible borders, and the
same name-- If they can’t work it out, how can the rest of us?

In shared services, I think my experience has run the gamut.
I've been involved in public safety, public works, health and social services,
recreation, technology, code administration, library, and the court. Some
have worked very well, but few have yielded massive savings.

I count myself an advocate of shared services. But I have seen
as many failures as successes, especially when the big-buck services are
included. Few have seen the successes that you've heard about in Somerset
County. And with municipal budgets in the tens of millions of dollars,
you've got to address the big-buck issues if you want to make a dent.
Overcoming obstacles and challenges to shared services is a high-effort
endeavor, sometimes with low return on investment.

In the early '90s, Summit’s mayor and I met monthly with
officials from nearby municipalities to discuss and plan for shared services.
Six meetings, and six months later, we established some services, and
Summit saved about $9,000 -- six months of work to save three one-
hundredths of 1 percent of the city budget.

Until there are incentives to deal with the big-buck items like
police and schools, and perhaps disincentives not to consolidate them,

shared services are likely to lead -- to yield, excuse me -- few major budget
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reductions. How many towns have discussed, let alone implemented,
shared services that yield half-million or million-dollar savings?

And even with the high effort to create shared services, they fall
apart pretty easily. Some remind me of sandcastles: lots of work undone in
a moment. A couple of examples: One collapsed when a town decided that
it was not saving enough money. The town actually preferred to spend
more money on its own to revert from the shared services rather than to feel
that its partner was saving too much.

I once held a couple of very informal, very preliminary talks
with a neighboring town’s mayor who wanted to explore joint fire services.
When the mayor’s elected colleagues found out about the conversations,
they ran him out of town on a political rail.

It’s not just a New Jersey issue. A nationwide study identified
10 significant obstacles to shared services. And, in New Jersey, I would add
another, and this one imposed by the State. And that is the issue of Civil
Service. I was recently involved with a shared services study for two
municipalities.  Although the study forecasted a combined savings of
$200,000, the consolidation is not proceeding. The resulting joint meeting
would have been under Civil Service jurisdiction. And the non-Civil Service
partner does not want to get involved with the bureaucracy.

Returning to the joint performance measurement study in the
nine towns, we can construct an illustration of the limited affect of even
massive shared services. The average 2004 budget in the nine towns was
almost $30 million. Let’s imagine that we can use shared services to reduce
that budget by 10 percent, $3 million. The $3 million savings reduces the

average local property -- local purpose property tax level from $17 million to
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$14 million, 21 percent -- a huge amount. But when you take county and
school taxes into account, the total tax levy is reduced by less than 4
percent. The reason: In the nine towns, the local purpose taxes are only 20
percent of the total tax burden.

So in this wildly optimistic example, the local government has
found a way to cut its budget by 10 percent, but the net savings to the
taxpayer is about equal to the typical annual increase in school and county
taxes.

Now, why do I call it wildly optimistic? Because among the nine
towns in the study, the $3 million represents -- and these are choices, not a
total -- on average, 55 percent of the police budget, two times the library
budget, or three times the roads maintenance budget, or almost four times
the garbage collection budget among the towns that collect garbage
themselves.

If I'm sounding pessimistic, negative, or defeatist, I am actually
hoping to sound practical. While analyzing solutions, I like to do that math
-- as one of you mentioned before. And the math suggests that meaningful
savings -- savings of 5 percent or 10 percent of the municipal budget -- are
not likely to come from shared services.

Even sharing most towns most expensive service, police, does
not yield meaningful tax relief. The math is just not promising. For
instance, among the nine towns in the study group, 23 percent of the police
force is brass, sergeants and up. Let’s suppose two of the departments
consolidate, and that they are able to eliminate half the resulting brass, a
questionable supposition. Two departments, each with a $5.5 million

budget, combine into one department with a $9.3 million budget. They
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save $1.7 million. The most difficult of all mergers, the police department,
reduces the workforce by 15 sergeants, lieutenants, captains, and deputies,
and one chief. If the savings -- the $1.7 million savings -- are shared equally
between the two towns, each town'’s total tax levy shrinks by 1 percent.

I don’t want to end on a negative note, because I'm depressing
even myself. (laughter) So let me offer some thoughts on how to foster
consolidation and shared services. Take away the disincentives that are
within your power, such as submission to Civil Service rules. Let the
entities decide.

Give local government the greatest possible flexibility to
establish management structures for joint operations, including
corporations, trusts, partnerships, general business arrangements.

Give them maximum flexibility to structure cost sharing. At
the same time, require comprehensive audits.

Permit different levels of taxation in different parts of a
consolidated municipality. Norwich, Connecticut, where I started my
career, had different tax rates in two different parts of town: the old city
and the old town. Allowing different tax rates would eliminate one
argument against consolidating towns where there are different debt levels
or different service levels.

I believe the State should take full management and financial
responsibility for a number of current county functions. And in this mix I
include the prosecutor, the sheriff, the court, the jail, the surrogate, the
county clerk, the county superintendent. Supporting these functions and
offices with the State’s broad tax base would eliminate some of the gross

inequities we now see, where taxpayers in more affluent counties pay much,
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much less for county services than those in less fortunate counties. It might
also foster consolidation among the counties.

Even if you end up rejecting them, think seriously about
coercive measures. It’s important to consider whether the property tax issue
is big enough, and important enough, and ugly enough for the State to force
municipalities to take action. Personally, I don’t think coercion is
ultimately the way to go. But it is worth a serious discussion of the issue of
coercion versus home rule.

And with that, I conclude.

I want to thank you again for the opportunity to address you. I
hope the observations are useful. Some of the facts in here are footnoted in
the printed version, which I'll make available to your staff.

And I will be happy to try to answer any questions you may
have.

SENATOR SMITH: Are there questions from members of the
Committee?

Yes, sir, Senator.

SENATOR KYRILLOS: Do we have a copy of this testimony?
Did you-- Or could we have a copy of your testimony?

MR. BURKHOLDER: Yes, sir. I have a copy that I'll make
available to the staff.

SENATOR KYRILLOS: Mr. Chairmen, if we could, through
the two of you, get a copy. Obviously, there--

SENATOR SMITH: Absolutely. We’ll share it with everyone.

SENATOR KYRILLOS: --kind of sobering, down report.
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I know you wanted it to be seen and portrayed as a practical
one. And we need to look at your footnotes, and have it verified, and see if
we agree with your relatively downbeat assessment.

But I think one big point you made is that -- and I don’t like
the term coercion. But there’s a lot of money that comes from State
government to the localities, and rightly so. It’s the people’s money. But
would that may mean an enhanced sense of responsibility and obligation.
And I think that’s what you're alluding to. And I think that’s a road we're
going to have to look at very seriously.

SENATOR SMITH: Any other questions? (no response)

Just-- I want to agree with you. I thought your testimony was
extremely depressing. (laughter)

However, that being said, there was some very interesting parts.
The -- and I will follow up on Senator Kyrillos’s comment about coercion.
Coercion is not coercion if it’s the will of the people. We may run into
resistance from either municipal officials, school board officials, fire district
officials, because they may not necessarily agree with what this Committee
comes up with.

The question is: What is it that the citizens and taxpayers of
the State of New Jersey want? We're not coercing them, who are,
ultimately, our bosses, if this is their will. So the coercion may be just with
the officials who disagree. And, again, you might be surprised. Some of the
local officials may not disagree and may actually welcome the opportunity
'for some consolidation.

But we’ll see. We have many months of work ahead of us.

And you made a contribution today by putting a little perspective on how
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difficult it is to get any of this done, which we knew. But you're right, you
did strike kind of a negative note there.

MR. BURKHOLDER: Senator, may I add one comment that
came up as a result of something that the folks from Somerset County said
in response to a question? And that is on the issue of home rule.

My sense is that home -- that community character is not
established by police departments, and fire departments, and tax collectors,
and finance directors, or administrators or managers. It’s established by
planning and zoning boards, it’s established by recreation programs, it’s
established by schools.

SENATOR SMITH: Right.

MR. BURKHOLDER: That’s where the character comes from.
And if you think, even of a city like Newark -- people identify with
Vailsburg, and they identify with the Ironbound, and Forrest Hill, and
other places like that. But they’re not separate municipalities.

SENATOR SMITH: Right.

And there may be ways where you can consolidate services. For
example, if you're talking about school boards, maybe you need to have all
of the central administration doing the purchasing, the transportation, the
insurance contracts, providing legal services; but still have some local
identity, such that the people of Dunellen still have a Dunellen School
District, or the people of Middletown still have a Middletown School
District. But get the savings associated with consolidating the
administrative functions. All right? There are ways to do that.

And I think you're also right about your comment with regard

to municipalities. The things that make a municipality a municipality are
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the planning and zoning, the recreation, and the local public works, and the
local -- I think the local police to a large extent, as well. But tell me about
tax collectors, tax assessors, and health departments. Do they necessarily
provide the identity to township residents?

So there’s a lot of things we’re going to look at.

We do appreciate you giving us a little perspective on how
tough it is.

Thank you for coming in.

MR. BURKHOLDER: My pleasure.

SENATOR SMITH: Mr. Chairman, I think-- Is it appropriate
to adjourn?

ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI: I think so.

SENATOR SMITH: All right then. Motion to adjourn. And
then let’s go back and get a calendar for the next several months.

ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI: So moved.

ASSEMBLYMAN GORDON: Second.

SENATOR SMITH: So moved, second.

All in favor, say aye. (affirmative responses)

It’s adjourned.

(MEETING CONCLUDED)
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W. Orange weighs sharing fire services
Orange and Montclair considered for consolidation

Tuesday, August 08, 2006

BY KEVIN C. DILWORTH
Star-Ledger Staff

West Orange has agreed to explore developing a shared municipal firefighting service with two of its Essex
County neighbors, a key to drastically reducing public safety salaries, benefits and apparatus costs, Orange
Mayor Mims Hackett Jr. said.

A week ago, the West Orange Township Council approved a measure to support the establishment of
shared services with Orange, Hackett said on Friday. "This matter is going to be explored over the next
couple of months."

The West Orange resolution commits the township only to exploring “the possible sharing of fire department
services, or the possible creation of a joint fire department, between the city of Orange and the township of

Montclair."

Right now, however, neither West Orange's mayor nor the township council is committing to anything else,
the measure notes.

Hackett, however, said West Orange Mayor John McKeon, as well as state Senate President Richard
Codey (D-Essex), support the concept of shared services.

For nearly two weeks, Orange's two firefighter unions and members of the Hackett administration have
been embroiled in a war of words that casts blame about reduced Orange staffing: 15 unfilled vacancies
and summer vacations have led to smaller ranks to battle blazes between 8 a.m. and 8 p.m. each day. The
union blames the city for the staffing shortage, while the city has cited financial difficulties.

The furor, at least from the view of firefighters, is expected to be spelled out this week in a letter from four
firefighter unions, but not the two Orange units, alerting all New Jersey municipal fire departments that
Orange should not be counted on for mutual aid.

“From my point of view, Orange is taking the 'mutual’ out of mutual aid,’ said Millburn Fire Chief Michael
Roberts, president of the Essex County Fire Chiefs Association. "With the low staffing level in Orange, they
will need to call on other Essex County fire departments for assistance when they have a fire.

"However, they are telling those towns (that) they are not available to help them if they have a fire," Roberts
said.

Orange currently has 15 vacancies in its fire department, which is authorized to have 81 members. Its
budget for the last fiscal year increased to $7.2 million, from $6.8 million in 2004-2005.

Orange's inability to adequately staff its fire department "puts a hardship on towns such as Millburn, East
Orange and West Orange, which rely on mutual aid," Roberts said.

The Essex County Fire C?hiefs Association, the Union County Fire Chiefs Association, the New Jersey

httn://www ni.com/printer/printer.ssf?/base/news-2/1 1555401205200.xml 8/8/2006
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Firemen's Mutual Benevolent Association, and the New Jersey Career Fire Chiefs met Thursday and
formed a labor and management coalition to review the Orange situation.

The group plans to send a letter alerting all fire departments about Orange's situation, Roberts said.

"We're going to address our concerns, as a coalition, to the mayor and the business administrator in
Orange, to see if we can resolve this," Roberts said.

The Orange Firemen's Mutual Benevolent Association, Local 10, and the Orange Fire Superior Officers
Association, Local 210, have criticized city officials for not resolving the staffing problem and for not
including them in discussions about shared municipal services or regionalization.

The Orange department had 63 firefighters in 1956; the number had increased to 106 by 1964, then
dropped to 82 by 1996.

Although the current authorized manpower is 81, just 66 firefighters are employed. Over the next two years,
officials have said, 17 firefighters will become eligible to retire.

Allen Barnhardt, Orange's civilian fire director, said he and the city already have agreed to hire four
firefighters next month.

"We have budgetary problems, like many other larger and smaller communities," Hackett explained in
March. "The residents want us to look at our budget. They want a stable tax. They want no tax increases.
And that's what we're trying to do."

Roberts said Orange should stop making excuses about its failure to maintain adequate firefighter levels.

"People need to realize that firetrucks don't put out fires, the firefighters on the firetrucks do," Roberts said.
"Staffing levels are, and have been, a concern for some time.

"The current staffing levels in Orange, which are well below industry standards set by the National Fire
Protection Association, go beyond concern, right to crisis level," Roberts added. “(They) need to be
addressed and resolved before any injury or death of a firefighter or civilian occurs."

Kevin C. Dilworth covers East Orange and Orange. He may be reached at kdilworth @starledger.com or
(973) 392-4143.

© 2006 The Star Ledger
© 2006 NJ.com All Rights Reserved.
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SOMERSET COUNTY icoReDiTED
BUSINESS PARTNERSHIP

A SMART GROWTH ORGANIZATION

Testimony of the Somerset County Business Partnership
before the
Joint Legislative Committee on Government Consolidation and Shared Services

August 8, 2006

Panel Members:
Jeffrey A. Horn, Somerset County Business Partnership
Thomas D. Sharpe, Somerset County Business Partnership
Gregory J. Bonin, Branchburg Township Administrator and Millstone Borough Clerk

- Mr. Horn:

Chairman Smith, Co-Chairman Wisniewski, Senators Karcher and Kyrillos, Assemblymen Gordon
and Malone, '

It is an honor for the Somerset County Business Partnership to appear before you at this, the inaugural
meeting of the Joint Legislative Committee on Government Consolidation and Shared Services. My
name is Jeffrey Horn and I serve as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Business Partnership.
Accompanying me today are Thomas D. Sharpe, the Business Partnership’s Vice President of Public
Affairs and Gregory J. Bonin, a key member of Partnership’s Shared Service Coordinating Council
and the Township Administrator for Branchburg Township and the Borough Clerk for the Borough of

Millstone.

The Somerset County Business Partnership is a coalition of business, government and non-profit
organizations organized to promote the County’s economic vitality and preserve its quality of life. The
Business Partnership addresses issues involving: economic and community development; small
business; tourism and cultural arts; and public affairs, as well as the networking and educational needs
of its members. The organization provides a number of diverse services including:

e Working with Somerset County and municipal governments, as well as area school
boards and educational institutions to promote and facilitate shared services.

e Serving as Somerset County’s economic development agency

e Coordinating actions by County and local governments and regional organizations in
seeking federal funding for the County’s highest infrastructure priority (a segment of
Route 22 running through portions of Branchburg and Bridgewater Townships and
Bound Brook Borough, for which federal appropriations totaled $9.4 million in 2005)

e Promoting Somerset County as a destination for visitors and tourists, in addition to
acting as an information clearinghouse for new residents relocating to Somerset County

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 833, Somerville, New Jersey 08876-0833 ® Location: 360 Grove Street at Route 22 East
Phone: 908.218.4300 ® Fax 908.722.7823
Website: www.SomersetBusinessPartnership.com ® Email: info@SomersetBusinessPartnership.com

P1_ Ko



You Are Viewing an Archived Copy from the New Jersey State Library

e Serving the needs of 650 member organizations, ranging in size from the 7,000
employees of the Johnson and Johnson Somerset County Companies to single
employee start-up businesses.

The Somerset County Business Partnership plays a unique role in facilitating shared services in the
Somerset County region. We have a ten-year plus history in promoting shared services. The program
has grown from a modest beginning, with the buy-in of Somerset County and most of its 21
municipalities and educational institutions. Participating Somerset County jurisdictions saved a total
of $13.7 million dollars through shared services in 2005. Key components of our success are:
cooperative communities and educational institutions; a strong steering committee of dedicated public
servants; elected and appointed county and local officials and their staffs, all of whom are willing to
help on all fronts. Further leveraging this effort are foundations and corporations willing to assist the

effort.

The Business Partnership houses and services the Somerset Shared Services Coordinating Council,
consisting of officials of participating jurisdictions. The Business Partnership’s role involves
coordinating and facilitating the oversight function of the Coordinating Council, providing research to
determine common needs, developing mutual agreements to fund feasibility studies, initiating
dialogue to create and fund interlocal agreements for new shared service initiatives, following up with
each participant to ensure that they are providing the necessary official actions required to move
projects forward, educating new officials within participating jurisdictions to keep them current and
keep momentum moving forward, and facilitate successful implementation. In addition, we monitor
existing shared services efforts to ensure that problems between jurisdictions are resolved as they
arise. The successes of our shared services program would not occur without a dispassionate neutral
party fulfilling the role I just described. By design, the Shared Service Coordinating Council does not
elect a chair, but relies on the Business Partnership to play the role the role of facilitator to ensure

progress.

Our purpose in appearing here today is to briefly discuss our successes (and there have been many)
and some of our failed efforts in sharing services among Somerset County government, many of our
21 municipalities, twenty school districts (which includes the Somerset County Educational Services
Commission and the Somerset County Vocational Technical School) and Raritan Valley Community
College. The successes that we will highlight are largely attributable to a dedicated group of county
and municipal elected officials, appointed county and municipal officials and education administrators
and officials. Yet the success of our program could be significantly greater, but for critical existing
barriers to shared services.

Mr. Sharpe will present you with more detailed background on the Somerset County Business
Partnership’s shared services program. Mr. Bonin will follow with a review of barriers to shared
services that we’ve encountered in our experience. Following our testimony, we will be pleased
answer any questions that you may have.

P2 B¢
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Mpr. Sharpe:
Good morning.

I have been invited today to provide an overview of the impact of shared services from a countywide
perspective. Somerset County has a long history of successful shared services initiatives between the
County, its municipalities and school districts.

In 1993, the Somerset Alliance for the Future (SAF) formed the Somerset Shared Services
Neighborhood Groups (SSSNG) — to encourage local government agencies and school districts to

share services for greater efficiency and taxpayer savings.

With strong support from Somerset County’s state legislators and the Somerset County Board of
Chosen Freeholders, meetings were held with mayors, administrators and school district officials.

To support the program, Somerset County government facilitated County Challenge Grant funding
from the N.J Department of Community Affairs, and later on, SAF received direct Regional Efficiency
Development Incentive (or REDI grant) funding for shared services feasibility studies.

To represent the County and the member towns and schools, the Somerset Shared Services
Coordinating Council of county, municipal and education officials was formed to administer the
program.

Specific objectives were set:

1. Identify the most promising services to share among municipalities, between towns and the
County, and among the towns and school districts

2. Bring about dozens of specific new shared services agreements

3. Remove legislative barriers to shared services

4. Expand communication among towns, schools and County

5. Serve as a state model for expanding shared services.
In April 2000, the Shared Services Coordinating Council recruited and hired a part-time shared
services administrator. Now called SCBP Shared Services, that part-time position has expanded into
a full-time Business Partnership position to coordinate shared services initiatives for the County,

Raritan Valley Community College, Somerset County Vo-Tech, the Somerset County Educational
Services Commission, the municipalities and the school districts.

rs Sk
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The challenge until now has been to effectively quantify the success of our sharing initiatives. The
Business Partnership released its 2005 Shared Services Taxpayer Savings Report, documenting
nearly $13.7 million in annual savings to Somerset County taxpayers. The importance of tracking,
quantifying and documenting real dollar savings as a benchmark for “raising the bar” can not be
overstated. Since its December 2005 release, the report has been circulated statewide to promote
Somerset County’s shared services as a strong model for effective tax stabilization and local

government efficiency.

Another essential key to well over a decade of shared services success in Somerset County is the
continuing support from SCBP investors and business members:

- Johnson & Johnson

- Sanofi-Aventis

- Pfizer

- Verizon

- PNC New Jersey

- PSE&G

- MetLife Foundation

- and other member businesses of all sizes.

In order to help “raise the bar” for shared services statewide, the Somerset County Business
Partnership has been coordinating with other counties and organizations to provide resources and
assistance:

- Bergen County Shared Services Forum — March 2006

- Hunterdon Chamber of Commerce and local governing officials

- Morris County Chamber Board of Directors

- Gloucester County Council — possible joint public safety proposal

- Burlington and Cape May Counties — hiring of a full-time shared services administrator

- Coordination with NJAC, NJLM, NJCC, NJBIA and legislative leadership.

In concluding, the June 2006 SCBP/SCMMA white paper report, Removing the Barriers to Shared
Services, further outlines the Somerset County formula for success, but more importantly, identifies
some of the clear and present “roadblocks” that inhibit or prevent our counties, towns and schools
from sharing. Copies of the white paper report are available on the Business Partnership’s website at

WWW.scbp.org.

The Somerset County Business Partnership will continue to offer ideas and resources to enable others
in the State of New Jersey to create highly productive and cost-saving shared services programs. The
hope is to multiply the annual $13.7 million in annual savings by all 21 counties, which would amount
to state-wide taxpayer savings approaching $300 million!

Thank you for the opportunity to speak to this kickoff session of the Government Consolidation and
Shared Services Committee.

X
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A White Paper Report:

Removing the Barriers to
Shared Services

A Prescription for Creating Efficiency
and
Taxpayer Savings
Through Local Government Shared Services

Presented by the Somerset County Municipal Managers Association
and the
Somerset County Business Partnership

June 2006
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Executive Summary

Removing the Barriers to Shared Services

A Prescription for Creating Efficiency
and Taxpayer Savings
Through Local Government Shared Services

Presented by the Somerset County Municipal Managers Association
and the
Somerset County Business Partnership

June 2006

In March 2006 Governor Jon Corzine announced that his proposals for property
tax relief that will push for municipalities and school districts to share local
government services.

On May 2006 Assembly Speaker Roberts announced that the Assembly will
undertake consideration of the Governor’s initiatives and unveiled his own CORE

reform plan.

Many obstacles stand in the way of advanced shared service initiatives. Most
include legislative barriers that inhibit bringing shared services to the next level.

Somerset County municipalities and school districts working with the Somerset
County Business Partnership (SCBP) have created a model shared services
network that has experienced outstanding success in its 12 year history.

The SCBP has as part of its organization the Somerset Municipal Managers
Association (SCMMA), a professional group of municipal Administrators
working to bring shared services to the next level.

The SCMMA and SCBP have worked to identify the “barriers to sharing” and
produced a report for distribution.

Some of those barriers include:
o Regulatory restrictions on health care plans and legislative restrictions on
the sharing of health care programs.
o Redundancy in local government operations
o Lack of incentives for local government including the lack of financing for

implementation and continuation.

The SCMMA and SCBP are asking the State to:

R o
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o Create a Shared Service Advisory Council composed of State and Local
professionals to help facilitate the creation of an overall shared services
program and the sharing of successful shared services practices.

o Provide financial assistance to those organizations with a proven track
record of promoting shared service initiatives.

o Undertake an honest and open discussion about the condition of our State
and to take the necessary actions to fix a broken system.

: 0 X
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Removing the Barriers to Shared Services

A Prescription for Creating Efficiency
and Taxpayer Savings
Through Local Government Shared Services

Presented by the Somerset County Municipal Managers Association
and the
Somerset County Business Partnership

June 2006

In his address at a March 2006 Shared Services Conference, hosted by Bergen
County, Governor Jon Corzine spoke to over 200 local government and school officials,
with the message that his administration will introduce proposals for property tax relief
that will push hard for municipalities and school districts to share local government
services. The Governor announced that he would be working with NJ General Assembly
Speaker Joe Roberts to put together legislation that would help cut the size of government
with a package of bills designed to eliminate many of the legislative barriers that
currently prevent municipalities from entering into interlocal agreements.

The State’s legislative leadership recognizes that many New Jersey towns refuse
to participate in shared services and has announced a series of initiatives that encourage
towns to participate in these efforts. These initiatives will focus on a “carrot and stick”
approach that may impose penalties on municipalities that do not participate in sharing
local government services.

In a May 10 press conference, Assembly Speaker Roberts announced that the
Assembly will undertake consideration of these initiatives this year, and unveiled his
CORE Reform Plan:

County Empowerment

Open and Accountable Local Government
Regionalization & Shared Services for Municipalities
Education, School Aid & Administration Reform

The plan is aimed at addressing the legal barriers that currently make it difficult
for local governments and school districts to share services.

Somerset County and its Municipalities: Removing the “Roadblocks”

In Somerset County, the Somerset County Municipal Managers Association
(SCMMA), a professional association of municipal administrators working with the
Somerset County Business Partnership (SCBP), is focusing on identifying the

‘lx
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“roadblocks™ that are inhibiting municipalities from furthering shared services with other
towns, the school districts and the county.

Somerset County’s towns have created a model shared services network that has
experienced outstanding and unparalleled success. However, it is the belief of the
SCMMA and the SCBP that the more reachable areas to facilitate sharing have been
accomplished and, at this point, “all the low fruit has been picked.”

The obstacles that stand before municipalities are the significant legislative
barriers that inhibit bringing shared services to the next level. With that in mind, the
SCMMA and SCBP proposes to work with Speaker Roberts’ office, the N.J. Department
of Community Affairs and the N.J. League of Municipalities to identify the “roadblocks”
and to actively push for meaningful legislation that will streamline and facilitate the
expansion of shared services.

The History of Somerset County Shared Services

In 1993, the Somerset Alliance for the Future, a business advocacy organization
focusing on quality of life issues in Somerset County (and one of the three organizations
integrated into the Somerset County Business Partnership in 2002), formed the Somerset
Shared Services Neighborhood Group (SSSNG). This group encouraged local
governments and school districts to share services for greater efficiency and taxpayer
savings. The focus was on creating workable programs with a financial benefit that would
outweigh proprietary issues and overcome home rule. The initiative was supported by
Somerset County’s State Legislators, the Board of Chosen Freeholders, mayors,
municipal administrators and school district officials. Start-up funding was received from
a County Challenge Grant from the New Jersey Department of Community Affairs and a
Regional Efficiency Development Incentive (REDI) Grant.

The defined objectives of the SSSNG were to: (1) identify the most promising
services, or the “low hanging fruit” to share between towns, the county and school
districts; (2) facilitate numerous new shared service agreements; (3) remove legislative
barriers to sharing services; (4) expand communication among entities with potential to
share services; and (5) serve as a model for the expansion of sharing services.

The early wins were many and accounted for hundreds of thousands of dollars
saved annually by municipalities, school districts, and ultimately, the taxpayers. The Fall
1997 SSSNG report documented 34 examples of money-saving shared initiatives, from
the saving of a few hundred dollars when Bridgewater employees completed Raritan’s
fixed asset inventory at half of the contractor’s rate, to the hundreds of thousands saved
when Branchburg constructed a single fuel facility accommodating both the township and
the school district. In other instances, municipalities entered into agreements to share
otherwise unaffordable state-of-the-art or seldom used equipment that they independently
would not be able to purchase.
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The following is a short list of successful shared services initiatives that have

taken place in Somerset County:

Bernards Township: In 2005 Bernards Township and Long Hill Township
merged their police and emergency communications centers. A state of the art
dispatching call center is now located in the Bernards Township Police
Department. Consolidating the centers resulted in a combined capital cost savings
of over $500,000.00. The merger provides for enhanced communication services
to both municipalities without additional costs. In addition, cost savings are being
realized, keeping police officers on the streets rather than using them to fill in for
dispatchers due to absences.

Bernards Township also provides a gasoline fueling facility and storage area for
use by two adjacent municipalities, Somerset County, and the Bernards Township
Board of Education, saving these agencies from having to construct similar
facilities, thereby saving these agencies hundreds of thousands of dollars in
capital costs.

Branchburg Township: In 2004 Branchburg Township and the Raritan Valley
Community College (RVCC), which is located in the Township, entered into an
agreement that has the potential to save millions of taxpayer dollars. In exchange
for having access to the local community cable channel wherein RVCC can
promote its offerings and showcase its student, the Township receives full access
to RVCC facilities (ball fields, pool, theaters, etc) for its residents and community
groups. This agreement has provided RVCC with access to the public and, by not
having to build new facilities, the Township has saved millions of dollars.

Montgomery Township: The Township and the Board of Education share a full-
time M.LS. Coordinator. The salary and benefit costs are shared 50-50, as is time.
He manages all of the information systems, telephone, computer, and off-site
computer networks. It has enabled the Township to integrate their computer
network with the Schools network giving the Township greater disaster recovery
capabilities and the Schools access to a GIS database. Over the last two years the
Township has saved approximately $100,000 in salary and benefits costs, as well
as any costs that would have been charged by outside consultants that had been
used in the past.

North Plainfield: The Borough has the only full time, paid fire department in
Somerset County and most of their fire department staff is also EMT certified.
This allows for a unique arrangement whereby North Plainfield provides daytime
EMS services to the Township of Green Brook. North Plainfield collects an
annual fee from Green Brook and, additionally, directly bills the user for the
service. Taking this success a step further, North Plainfield, Green Brook and
Watchung are currently pursuing a SHARE Grant to study the feasibility of North
Plainfield providing daytime fire services to the other towns in a similar manner.

643\:
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e Manville/Raritan: During the mid 1990°s the volunteer Rescue Squads in the
Boroughs of Manville and Raritan experienced a severe drop in membership and
were unable to adequately staff day time squad calls. Each town then contracted
with the same private ambulance firm to keep this essential service for its
residents. Although the yearly cost was initially $60,000 by 2002 it had risen to
nearly $100,000. In 2002, through a shared services grant, Manville, Raritan,
South Bound Brook and the Township of Bridgewater created the Somerset
Ambulance Shared Services Agency (SASSA). The Somerset Medical Center
was awarded the contract through a public bid to provide ambulance services 6
am to 6 pm, Monday through Friday. In 2006 the cost to provide daytime
ambulance service to all four municipalities is $67,000. If each municipality
continued to contract on its own for private ambulance services the total annual
cost would exceed $300,000. We consider SASSA to be significant evidence of
how shared services can produce enormous savings to the taxpayers.

e Bridgewater: The Bridgewater Township Public Works Facility is an example of
Municipal and County government sharing resources on a local and regional basis
for the benefit of area residents. The new facility, to be constructed by the
County as part of land swap agreement with the Township, will be co-located
with County and Bound Brook municipal public works facilities at a site in
Bridgewater. The construction itself is an example of regional shared services,
while operating efficiency opportunities will increase in the areas of shared
resources, equipment, storage and manpower which has the potential to generate
significant cost savings for Bridgewater residents.

Reaching towards the next level of Shared Services

In December 2005 the Somerset County Business Partnership released its 2005
Shared Services Savings Report documenting $13,695,962 in savings to Somerset County
taxpayers as a result of local shared services initiatives by the municipalities, the schools
and the county. While these are staggering results they pale in comparison to the
potential savings that could be realized if we advance to the next level of shared services.
In order to reach the next level the existing barriers must be addressed and the process for
encouraging and promoting shared services must be recreated.

e Bureaucracy: With the 566 municipalities and 616 school districts in the State of
New Jersey, there is a multitude of redundant efforts costing the taxpayers
millions of dollars. The State of New Jersey needs to take the lead in thinning
bureaucracy through consolidation and sharing of services.

e Regulations: Reform is required in all areas to permit and encourage the sharing
of services. The current regulations for both civil service and health benefits, for
example, not only impede, but prohibit shared service initiatives.

Barriers to Sharing

T b4 x
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The SCMMA has recently met to identify and list the “clear and present” barriers
that have, in the past, and currently hinder the efforts of municipalities to share local
government services. As a result, the SCMMA has identified a variety of significant
problems and possible solutions.

e Lack of support for employees displaced by shared services. The State should
create a system that provides aid for displaced employees. Provide assistance
with employee buyout programs, outplacement efforts and transition plans.

e Health care costs. Regional health insurance funds could be established similar to
the current Joint Insurance Funds. Additionally, current laws in the State Health
Benefits Plan restrict how municipalities may implement cost savings techniques
while other State laws actually prohibit a municipality and Board of Education
from creating a joint health benefits program.

e Many municipal functions are implemented the same across boundaries — e.g.
grounds maintenance, tax assessment, construction code services, health services,
dog/cat licensing, ambulance and fire services — programs should be established
to promote regionalization of these services.

e The State should create a series of programs that provide incentives to
municipalities:

o Incentives for municipalities to continue existing shared programs.

o Incentives for implementation as opposed to feasibility studies. Reward
towns by granting more money to implement the actual shared service as
opposed to funding a study that may be a wasted effort.

o Incentives for host municipalities to take on the responsibility of creating
new shared services. Governing Bodies need a reason to take on a shared
service for another town.

o Incentives to seek out privatization wherever feasible.

e The State should provide financial/grant assistance on an annual basis to well
organized groups (like the Somerset County Business Partnership) that are
dedicated to shared service efforts and have a proven record of success.

e The State DCA should increase its already substantial efforts in facilitating shared
services by helping to share success stories among municipalities and counties.
DCA is in the unique position to create a total shared services program that
incorporates current programs and those we have suggested. Only the State has
the ability to reach all municipalities and provide the tools to bring true cost
savings to our residents. )

With over a decade of proven accomplishments and leadership in the field of
shared services, the Somerset County Business Partnership and its affiliated

s D x
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organizations, are in a unique position to provide assistance to the State, our legislators
and other governmental organizations on how to achieve success in shared services. The
SCBP has been host to numerous counties and made presentations at countless
professional functions in an effort to share our unique formula for success. We take great
pride in being on the forefront of shared services yet would be more than willing to
relinquish that position if it meant that all municipalities in the State were as successful as
those in Somerset County.
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Responses through October 26, 2005

2004 Projected 2005

All BP Member Towns (17) $ 7,539,545 $ 7,849,954
10 School Districts $ 3,958,444 $ 4,208,998

Bedminster ~ Branchburg

Franklin Somerset Hills

Somerville  South Bound Brook

Watchung Watchung Hills

Vo-Tech SCESC
7 County Departments* $ 1,442,009 $ 1,637,010

Health Purchasing

Public Works Treasurer

Engineering (Transportation)

MIS/GIS

Total Savings $12,939,998 $13,695,962

*Planning and other major assistance to towns (i.e., Economic Development) is not included in survey results

SCBP SHARED SERVICES - SCHOOL DISTRICTS
2004 - 2005 TAXPAYER SAVINGS SURVEY
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Administration/Finance
Management Information Services

Purchasing

Payroll Services
Human Services

County Improvement Authority

Somerset Co. Engineering
Transportation

Somerset Co. GIS
GIS Data, Service, Equipment

Public Works
Assistance to Municipalities
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Support for Bridgewater Township Library
computer network

Computer support — Somerville Borough

Coop pricing system for Somerset County
municipalities

Used vehicles & equipment sold to
municipalities for $1.00

Provide computer/printer access to
Social Services Board

Shared Training for Somerset County
municipal employees

Interest savings — finance lease/purchase
for municipalities
Total Savings

SCOOT/DASH marketing program provided by
Somerset County Business Partnership -

RideWise
Total Savings

Provided to towns & schools
Total Savings

Miscellaneous Services
Total County Savings

2004

$187,500
125,000

69,000
38,300

1,000
25,000

154,637
$600,437

$33,835
$33,835

$279,000
$279,000

$528,737
$1,442,009

SHARED SERVICES SAVINGS COMPARISON

2004 & 2005
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2005
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Somerset County i¥atesjsedesihs eatehietep uimiodeNtyresepepitivisgnlanning and shared
services. From the initial efforts of the Somerset Shared Services Neighborhood Group in
2002, to the Shared Services Coordinating Council in 2005, Somerset County governments
have led the way in development and implementation of effective cost-saving initiatives.
In 2003, the Somerset County Business Partnership documented nearly $10 million
dollars worth of savings over a five-year period, an unheard of figure that garnered
statewide attention.

The Shared Services Coordinating Council meets regularly throughout the year to identify
the most promising services to share between towns, between towns and the county, and
between towns and school districts; to facilitate new shared service agreements; to
enhance communication among entities with potential to share services; and to serve as
a model for the expansion of sharing services.

Now, in 2005 alone, the Business Partnership and the 39 active participants in the Shared
Services Coordinating Council are proud to present the details of more than $13 million
in documented shared service savings in ONE YEAR!

The Shared Services Coordinating Council, a committee of the
Public Affairs Chamber of the Somerset County Business
Partnership, works closely with Somerset County government,
individual municipalities, school districts, and the private sector to
promote tax stabilization and government efficiency through
shared service initiatives and cooperative agreements.

Actively participating in the Shared Services Coordinating Council
are 17 Somerset County municipalities (plus Long Hill, Morris
County), 13 Somerset County school districts (plus East Amwell,
North Hunterdon/Voorhees, and Hunterdon Central, Hunterdon
County), Somerset County Educational Services Commission,
Raritan Valley Community College, Somerset County Vocational
and Technical Schools, and 7 departments of Somerset County
Government.

B Bedminster
m Bernards

Annual Municipal/County Dues Contributions 0 Bernardsville
o0 Bound Brook

$74,675 B Branchburg

@ Bridgewater

H Franklin

o Hilisborough

m Manville

m Montgomery

a North Plainfield

O Raritan

m Rocky Hill

® Somerville

m South Bound Brook
mWarren

o Watchung

0 Readington

o Long Hill

o Raritan Valley C.C.
o Som. Cty. Vo-Tech
& Educ. Services Comm.
@ Somerset County
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The Shared Services Coordinating Council operates with an annual
budget of $76,000. Funding is received from the participating
governments and school administrations. Municipal contributions
range from $675 to $3,750 and school contributions are $500 per
district. In addition, the Somerset County Board of Chosen
Freeholders annually contributes $25,000.

This $76,000 budget expenditure in 2005 has resulted in a savings in
excess of $13,000,000 to the taxpayers of Somerset County. Operating
under the umbrella of the Somerset County Business Partnership,
costs for the Shared Services Coordinating Council are .0043% of the
annual taxpayer savings.

Annual Shared Service Expense Distribution ® Salary
B Payroll Taxes
$75’954 O Fringe Benefits

O Conferences/Seminars
B Dues/Subscriptions

@ Employee Business Exp.
B Food/Supplies

O Insurance

m Janitorial

m Office - Supplies

o Office - Postage

o Office - Printing

m Rent

m Professional Services

m Equipment Rental/Maintenance
m Telephone

o Advertising & Promotion

A summary of the savings for 2005, reported by the municipalities,
school districts and County government, follows. It should be noted
that “trade-offs” (municipalities plowing school parking lots in
exchange for school maintenance staff cleaning municipal offices) are
not included.

€ SOMERSET COUNTY
BUSINESS PARTNERSHIP

‘LEADERSHIP « OPPORTUNITY » RESULTS

360 Grove Street at Route 22 East ® Bridgewater, New Jersey
Post Office Box 833 ® Somerville, New Jersey 08876
Phone: 908-218-4300 ® Fax 908-722-7823 ® www.scbp.org
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Testimony Before the Joint Legislative Committee on Government
Consolidation and Shared Services

August 8, 2006
By

Gregory J. Bonin, Administrator
Branchburg Township

Senator Smith, Assemblyman Wisniewski and esteemed members of this J oint
Legislative Committee, thank you for having me here today.

My name is Gregory Bonin and for the past seven years I have been the
Administrator for Branchburg Township in Somerset County, a town of over 15,000
residents. I also serve in a part time capacity as the Municipal Clerk for Millstone
Borough in Somerset County, a town with fewer than 450 residents. During my tenure in
government I have worked for seven municipalities, each with it’s own unique character
and issues. As President of the Somerset County Municipal Managers Association, I
represent the appointed chief executive officers of the 21 municipalities in our
Association. It is with this background that I appear before you today and offer my
thoughts and comments on Shared Services and Municipal Consolidation.

The concept of shared services dates well back into the 1970’s (and probably
before) when they were called interlocal agreement. For the past twelve (12) years
Somerset County has set the standard in the area of shared services. From our initial
efforts wherein we hired a facilitator to promote shared services amongst our
municipalities to a recent publication, produced by the Somerset County Business
Partnership, that shows Somerset County towns saving over $13,000,000 annually we are
proud of our accomplishments and we look to expand shared services even more. But we
are also realistic. We know that there are obstacles that stand in our way of achieving
new level of savings. And we know that shared services are not the panacea to solving
the tax burden in this State. Shared services is a means to hold back the deluge. Itisa

patch on a broken system.

In June of 2006 the Somerset County Municipal Managers Association presented
DCA Commissioner Susan Bass Levine with a “white paper” entitled “Removing the
Barriers to Shared Services” (copy attached). This paper was intended to not only
highlight the efforts of municipalities to reduce costs through shared services but also to
bring to light some of the legislative barriers and hurdles that stand in the way of
advanced shared services and true savings to the tax payers of NJ. This paper was in no
way intended to be a blueprint for solving our issues but a first step to open the

discussions that may lead to some tax relief.
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I’d like to share with you not only some of the successes that Branchburg
Township has had with Shared Services, but also, and more importantly, some of our

failures;

e Like many towns Branchburg Township and our local Board of Education have
extensive shared services including lawn and field maintenance, facility use and
snow removal. We have taken this effort even further by operating a joint fueling
facility and by providing the Board of Education Transportation Department free
office space in our public works garage.

e In 2004 Branchburg Township and the Raritan Valley Community College
(RVCC), which is located in the Township, entered into an agreement that has the
potential to save millions of taxpayer dollars. In exchange for having access to
the local community cable channel wherein RVCC can promote it’s offerings and
showcase its student, the Township receives full access to RVCC facilities (ball
fields, pool, theaters, etc) for its residents and community groups. This agreement
has provided RVCC with access to the public and, by not having to build new
facilities, the Township has saved millions of dollars.

e Branchburg, Franklin and Montgomery Townships recently entered into an
agreement wherein construction sub-code officials can be shared amongst each
town when there is a need. One of the Township’s involved in the agreement can
request temporary assistance from the others when that town is in need of
additional construction department support. This arrangement allows the
municipalities to address higher volumes of work without the additional cost of
hiring new employees. It also prevents a township from having to consider
layoffs when there is a short term downturn in construction activity.

Branchburg does all it can to ease the burden on our residents. We continue to
look at ways to reduce the property taxes via shared services and other cost saving
techniques. We are reluctant participants in the ratables chase. Despite all our best
efforts we are not always successful as stemming the tide. Property taxes continue to
escalate beyond the ability for the average citizen to handle let alone retire on. Too many
obstacles are in the way for there to be a true tax reducing impact on the resident.

A few years ago Branchburg Township attempted to enter into a shared service
arrangement with the County of Somerset for health services. We began discussions with
the County hoping they could take over the functions of our health department. The goal
was simple; reduce our costs and provide a similar level of service to our residents. As
we entered this process we thought this would be a “no brainer”. The work performed by
local health agencies are almost identical. Of the 566 municipalities and 21 counties in
the State there are only approximately 118 Health Officer positions. This certainly means
there are quite a number of regional health offices, many of which are run entirely by a
County government. In the end what we found was that the County wanted more money
to run our health department than it cost the Township. There are laws in the books that
mandate that when such a plan is enacted (County assuming Health department
functions) the County MUST hire the local health officer at their current salary. Given
that the County already employs a credentialed health officer, this law seems to fly in the

face of the effort to reduce the tax burden.
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Branchburg Township is a town of 15,000 residents and 22 square miles. Not
large by anyone’s standard. Yet the Township is serviced by four volunteer fire
companies and one rescue squad. Last year the Township hired a consulting firm from
Virginia to evaluate the Township’s demographics, existing fire stations and apparatus,
with the goal of receiving a report that would recommend what is required to provide fire
protection for the residents. The consultants spent a fair amount of time visiting the fire
companies, gathering data and meeting with community leaders. When all was said and
done the report recommended that the Township dismiss one volunteer fire company and
reallocate the existing equipment (fire trucks) that the Township owns and lends to the
fire companies. With the reductions in annual contribution and savings obtained without
having to purchase redundant equipment, the Township could have saved in excess of
$100,000 per year by following the recommendations of the consultant. We have yet to
take the recommendation of the firm. Why? Because in the political world we live in it
is very difficult for a Governing Body to stand up and “dismiss” a group of volunteer
fireman/woman. I suspect that so long as elected and appointed officials desire to retain
their seats, a change as radical as this will not happen.

Shared services is not the cure, it is not the silver bullet that will solve the
problems of our State. We need a drastic overhaul on all levels of Government. There
are so many other issues that force rising taxes. Most of which are out of the control of

local government. A few examples being;

 Binding Arbitration — with settlements exceeding 4% and these costs occupying a
large percentage of a municipal budget, how can a municipality even hope to keep
taxes down?

o Unfunded Mandates — unfunded mandates are nothing more than an additional tax
on the residents. New Jersey is one of the most regulated States in the Country.
Each new rule and regulation handed down by the State and Federal governments
and each new law that the municipalities must adhere to are paid for by the
residents of this State. The new Stormwater regulations alone will cost
Branchburg Township over $100,000 this year. The money to pay for these
mandates must come from somewhere.

o Deer Carcass removal — It cost the State approximately $750,000 per year to
remove deer carcasses from NJ roads. With the expiration of that contract on
October 1, 2006 that cost is now being placed upon the municipalities and
Counties. Branchburg Township, being an average sized town, will pay have to
pay somewhere in the vicinity of $15,000 in the next year for deer removal.
Assuming an average cost of $10,000 per municipality, the cost to New Jersey
residents will be over $5,000,000 next year (please note I did not even factor in
County costs).

o Health Benefits — Despite being in the same State, County and township, my
municipality cannot join with our local Board of Education to purchase health
benefits as a larger group so we may enjoy the quantities of scale savings. Why?
Because State law prohibits this action.
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Call them Shared Services or Interlocal Agreements, the concept of sharing
resources is not new. Threugh it’s thirty plus years of history, shared services has done
nothing to stop unfair rising property taxes. It has been the proverbial “finger in the
dam”. That dam is now cracking and there aren’t enough fingers.

True tax relief will only come when all levels of Government are willing to
change to better serve the residents of the State. When personal interests are put aside so
that people who have worked all their lives in the State can retire in the State. We must
take a holistic approach and examine all facets of Government — State, County and local.

On behalf of the Somerset County Municipal Managers and as a resident of this
State, 1 offer the following for your consideration;

o Changing how the local governments do business is only one piece of the overall
puzzle and will not provide the full cost savings that the taxpayers of this state
should expect. The State and County must also change how they do business.

o We must consider reducing the units of government even if that means a
reduction in services. I expect most residents would accept a reduced level of
service if there was a substantial reduction in their property taxes.

o There has to be pension reform that takes care of full time employees who have
devoted their careers to Government in New Jersey.

o There has to be a review of State and Federal unfunded mandates on
municipalities.

e There must be a more fair distribution of State aid to municipalities and school
districts.

e The State must create an incentive program and reward municipalities that are
active in shared services.

o The State must not reward those municipalities who resist or do not achieve a
satisfactory level of shared services.

o The State must impose upon itself stringent budget restraints in the same manner
it imposes on municipalities.

o Only the State legislature can force all levels of government to make radical
changes in operations. '

e Municipal consolidation can be a successful tool to reduce the tax burden and it
can be done while at the same time honoring the concepts of “home rule”.

o Proper legislation can and will force all levels of Government to find creative

solutions to achieving their goals.

Many of the items I have discussed are not new and certainly what I have put
forth is not a complete list of areas that should be explored or problems that exist. In fact
you may already have known many of the items I touched on and probably more. But
they bear repeating over and over again until something is done.

[ thank you again for your time and 1 stand ready to assist this body in any way I
can.
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June 2006

Honorable Susan Bass Levin
State of New Jersey

101 E. Broad Street

Department of Community Affairs
Trenton, New Jersey 08625

Re:  White Paper - Barriers to Shared Services

Commissioner Levin,

As professionals in local government and an organization who have worked for
many years to preserve the quality of life in central New Jersey, the Somerset County
Municipal Managers Association and Somerset County Business Partnership have joined
together to submit the attached white paper on “Removing the Barriers to Shared

Services”.

New Jersey is one of the most overtaxed and overregulated States in the country.
Out of the fifty states we rank amongst the highest, if not the highest, in units of
government. Our per capita cost of government and the taxes required from our residents
to fund government operations (local, school and county) are driving residents out of the
State and reducing the quality of life for those who remain. Residents who have lived
and contributed to this State should not be forced to leave due to the unwillingness of
their local and State leaders to make the tough, but proper, decisions. Those residents
who have remained have become accustomed to receiving a high level of service. As
costs increase all levels of government are forced to decide whether or not to raise taxes
or reduce the services provided to our residents. Neither is a popular choice or a decision
we wish to make. As public servants and professionals, we must make these decisions
despite the negative effects that come with either choice.

It is time for an honest reform of the State organizational structure. Only the
Governor and State Legislature have the ability to help the people of this State by
mandating the restructuring of government in this State and by making legitimate
changes to the way ALL levels of government operate.

The Somerset County Municipal Managers Association and the Somerset County
Business Partnership call on all our State legislatures to reflect on the condition of the
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State and our residents, and to take the necessary actions to fix a broken system. We
encourage our colleagues at the State to ask advice from those who are closest to the
problem - municipal professionals. Finally, we stand ready and offer ourselves to help
the State, in any way we can, to promote changes that will provide relief to our fellow

New Jerseyans.

On behalf of the Somerset County Municipal Managers Association,

Gregory J. Bonin, President
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summit (ollaborative advisors, LLC

REAGAN BURKHOLDER, PRINCIPAL 27 Argyle Court Summit NJ 07901
Voice 1 908 522 0666

Fax 1 908 522 0666

reagan@sca-lic.com

CONSOLIDATION & SHARED SERVICES

Remarks before the joint legislative committee, Tuesday, August 9, 2006

To the honorable chairs, senators, members of the assembly, ladies and gentlemen: Good
morning and thank you for the opportunity to address you today.

PROFESSIONAL HISTORY

Over the course of my 32 years serving four local governments in Connecticut and New
Jersey, I have had the opportunity — indeed, the professional responsibility — to deal with
issues of consolidation and shared services. I have also been involved is performance
measurement at the local-government level.

I hope my experiences and observations will be useful as you consider how consolidation
and shared services fit into the puzzle of tax reform.

BENCHMARKING & PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT

For the past couple of years, I have been working with a group of nine New Jersey
municipalities! in an effort to measure municipal performance and to establish benchmarks
for improvement.

The project gathers and analyzes data in order to promote better decisions about costs,
resources, methods, and effectiveness. The municipal managers and administrators in the
group — and their governing bodies — believe that measuring performance is a basic
function of well-run municipalities.

However, only a minuscule fraction of local governments — either in New Jersey or at the
national level — take concrete steps to measure their own performance and compare it with

others.

I'll return to performance measurement and benchmarking after a few words on my
experience with consolidation and shared services.

CONSOLIDATION: LOOKING OUTSIDE NEW JERSEY

There is so little useful history of consolidation in New Jersey that one needs to look
elsewhere for meaningful examples.

1 Aberdeen & Wall (Monmouth), East Brunswick (Middlesex), Maplewood and Millburn (Essex),
Rahway, Scotch Plains & Summit (Union), and Sparta (Sussex)
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Norwich CT

My own government career began in Norwich CT, a consolidated city and town of 29 sq mi
and 40,000 residents. Settled in 1659, Norwich’s zenith came during the heyday of the giant
mills, which even today line its three rivers. The community still has not fully recovered
from the abrupt closing of those mills fifty years ago. Had the city and town not
consolidated, however, the old core city would probably have become unlivable as the

surrounding town prospered.

New Zealand experience

To get a more recent view of consolidation, we can look across the oceans. In 1988, New
Zealand’s 4 million residents were served by 678 units of local government. A year later, they
had 86 local governments, a reduction of 87%. Consolidation reduced the number of local-
government employees by 20%, from 44,200 to approximately 35,0002

Clearly, New Zealand is not New Jersey. In a parliamentary nation with British traditions,
local government exists by the grace of parliament. In 1988, the central government dissolved
all local governments and told a commission to work it all out. This is coercion in its ultimate
form.

So I mention New Zealand’s experience to make this point: significant consolidation among
New Jersey municipalities would probably require more coercion than anyone in this room
is likely to endorse.

The Federal Highway Administration coerces states to adopt various standards by
threatening to withhold aid. If New Jersey wants its aid, it must comply.

I doubt that positive incentives — additional grant funds — will be enough to foster
consolidation, unless those grants are huge. If the two Princetons — with joint schools, joint
library, joint planning, joint health services, joint recreation, invisible borders, and the same
name — if they can’t work it out, how can the rest of us?

SHARED SERVICES

Turning to shared services, my own experience has run the gamut: public safety, public
works, health and social services, recreation, technology, code administration, library, and
the court. Some have worked very well, but few have yielded massive savings.

I count myself an advocate of shared services, but I have seen as many failures as successes,
especially when the big-buck services are included. And with municipal budgets in the tens
of millions of dollars, you've got to address the big-buck issues if you want to make a dent.

HIGH EFFORT — LOW RETURN

Overcoming the obstacles and challenges to shared services is a high effort endeavor,
sometimes with low return on investment.

In the early 90s, Summit’s mayor and I met monthly with officials from nearby
municipalities, to discuss and plan for shared services. Six meetings and six months later, we

2 http://www.localgovinz.co.nz/lg-sector/role/
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established some shared services and Summit saved about $9000. Six months of work to save
three one-hundredths of one percent of the city budget (0.03%).

Until there are incentives to deal with the big-buck items like police and schools — and
perhaps disincentives not to consolidate them — shared services are likely to yield few major
budget reductions. How many towns have discussed, let alone implemented, shared services
that yield half-million or million dollar savings?

SANDCASTLES

Even with the high effort to create shared services, they fall apart pretty easily. Some remind
me of sandcastles: lots of work undone in a moment.

I have watched shared services fall apart for a variety of reasons:

o One collapsed when a town decided that it was not saving enough money. The town
preferred to spend more money on its own rather than to feel that its partner was saving
too much.

o Ionce held a couple of very informal, very preliminary talks with a neighboring town'’s
mayor, who wanted to explore joint fire services. When the mayor’s elected colleagues
found out about the conversations, they ran him out of town on a political rail.

OBSTACLES & CHALLENGES

This is not just a New Jersey issue. A nationwide study identified ten significant obstacles to
shared services.3 In New Jersey, I would add two more, both imposed by the state.

State-imposed

o Civil service: I was recently involved with a shared services study for two municipalities.
Although the study forecast a combined savings of $200,000, the consolidation is not

proceeding.

The resulting organization would be under Civil Service jurisdiction and the non-Civil
Service partner does not want to get involved with the bureaucracy.

3 Internal
Mistrust or poor relationships between potential partners

Financial disparities between jurisdictions
Desire for control of local services
Perceived loss of accountability

Lack of leadership

@)

O O O ©°

External
Negative staff attitude

Bureaucracy

Limited time, energy, and resources
Administrative operability

Lack of management support

Collins, Scott. “Interlocal Service-Sharing Agreements” ICMA IQ Reports, v 38, #3, 2006, p4
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o Funding formulas: School issues are not my area of expertise. However, it does seem that
existing regional districts are breaking up faster than new ones are being formed.
Assessment-based funding formulas often seem to trigger disestablishment.

Happily, municipalities seem to have a good deal more flexibility in establishing funding
formulas and management systems. Please maintain and expand that flexibility as you

develop new approaches.

A HYPOTHETICAL EXAMPLE

Returning to the joint performance-measurement study in the nine towns, we can construct
an illustration of the limited effect of even massive shared services.

The average 2004 budget in the nine towns was almost $30 million. Let's imagine that we can
use shared services to reduce the budget by 10%: $3 million.

The $3 million saving reduces the average local-purpose levy from $17 million to $14 million
— 21%: a huge amount.

But, with county and school taxes included, the total tax levy is reduced by less than 4%
(from $79.3 million to $76.3 million).

So, in this wildly optimistic example, the local government has found a way to cut its budget
by 10%, but the net savings to the taxpayer is about equal to a typical annual increase in
school and county taxes.

And why do I call this “wildly optimistic”? Because, among the nine towns in the study,
$3 million represents, on average:

o 55% of the police budget, or

o 2X the library budget, or

o 3X the roads maintenance budget, or

o Almost 4X the garbage collection budget

NEGATIVITY

If I am sounding pessimistic, negative, or defeatist, I actually hope to sound practical. When
analyzing solutions, I like to do the math. And the math suggests that meaningful savings —
savings of 5% or 10% of the municipal budget —are not likely to come from shared services.

Even sharing most towns’ most expensive service — police — does not yield meaningful tax
relief. The math is just not promising. For instance, among the nine towns in the study
group, 23% of the police force is brass: sergeants and up.

Now let’s suppose two police departments consolidate and that they are able to eliminate
half the resulting brass (a questionable supposition). Two departments with $5.5 million
budgets combine into one department with a $9.3 million budget.

This most difficult of all mergers — the police department — reduces the workforce by 15
sergeants, lieutenants, captains, and deputies, and one chief. It saves $1.7 million. If savings
are shared equally between the two towns, each town’s total tax levy shrinks by (drumroll)

one percent.
I don’t want to end on a negative note, so please let me offer some thoughts on how to foster

consolidation and shared services.



You Are Viewing an Archived Copy from the New Jersey State Library

Remarks before the joint legislative committee, Tuesday, August 9, 2006 Page 5of 5

PRESCRIPTIVES

o]

Take away the disincentives that are within your power, such as submission to Civil
Service rules. Let the entities decide. \

Give local government the greatest possible flexibility to establish management
structures for joint operations, including corporations, trusts, partnerships, etc. Give
them maximum flexibility to structure cost sharing. At the same time, require
comprehensive audits.

Permit different levels of taxation in different parts of a consolidated municipality.
Norwich CT, for instance, had different tax rates for the old “city” and “town” portions
of the consolidated municipality, This would eliminate one argument against
consolidating towns with different debt levels or different service levels.

The state should take full management and financial responsibility for a number of
current county functions. In this mix, I include the prosecutor, the sheriff, the court, the
jail, the surrogate, the county clerk, the county superintendent.

Supporting these offices and functions with the state’s broad tax base would eliminate
some of the gross inequities we now see, where taxpayers in more affluent counties pay
much, much less for county services than those in less fortunate counties.4 It might also
foster consolidation of these services

Even if you end up rejecting them, think seriously about coercive measures. It is
important to consider whether the property-tax issue is big enough and important
enough and ugly enough for the state to force municipalities to take action. Personally, I
don’t think coercion is the way to go, but it is worth a serious discussion

CONCLUSION

And with that, I conclude. I want to thank you again for the opportunity to share some
thoughts. I hope you find them useful, and I will be happy to try to answer any questions

you may have.

4

2000 census median income: Morris $77,340; Essex $44,944 pa
DCA 2004 annual report: equalized county tax rate Madison $0.233; Maplewood $0.582
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REAGAN BURKHOLDER

summit (ollaborative advisors, LLC

27 Argyle Court

Summit, NJ 07901
Voice/fax 1 908 522 0666
reagan@sca-lic.com

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Principal, Summit Collaborative Advisors, LLC since Jul 02
City Administrator, Summit, NJ May 85 - Jun 02
21,000 pop, $30 million budget, 210 employees

Township Manager, East Windsor, NJ Aug 78 - Apr 85
22,000 pop, $8.5 million budget, 125 employees

Borough Administrator, Leonia, N] Apr 74 - Aug 78
8,500 pop, $4 million budget, 65 employees

Planning coordinator, City of Norwich, CT Jan 70 - Jun 73
Radio & newspaper journalist Sep 66 - Dec 69

EDUCATION

MA in Public Administration
University of Connecticut May 74

BA in Liberal Studies
University of Notre Dame  Jun 66

AWARDS & RECOGNITIONS

Outstanding management awards
NJ Municipal Management Association 1982, 1991, 2001

Management innovation award
American Society for Public Administration 1982

OTHER ACTIVITIES

- Speaker & panelist
State and international municipal conferences, since 1982

Instructor, Powers & Duties of the Local Elected Official
Center for Government Services, Rutgers University, since 1979

Budget award judge
Government Finance Officers Association, 1992 - 1995

Summit Downtown, Inc
Retail Enhancement Committee, 2002-2005

Board of visiting peers
National Association of Schools of Public Affairs &

Administration, since 1994

Officer & president
NJ Municipal Management Association, 1980 - 1986
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August 8, 2006

Hon. Joseph Kyrillos

Senator, District 13

One Arin Park Bldg., Suite 301
1715 Hwy. 35

Middletown, NJ 07748

Re: Consolidation and Shared Services

yog

Dear »;eI{a' o¥ Kyrillos:

As you egin to consider how best to deliver on the promise of property tax relief and reform, be assured that
the New Jersey League of Municipalities (NJLM) stands ready to assist you in any way. Please don’t hesitate to
contact me or my staff on any matter that comes before you.

The purpose of this letter is to make you aware of our position on government consolidation and shared
services.

NJLM has a long and well-established tradition of supporting the rights of local citizens to determine their
government. The League also has supported joint services over the past 25 years as a means to improve the
efficiency and effectiveness with which municipalities deliver services.

The League issues the within statement to clearly set forth its position on Municipal Consolidation and Shared
Services as the Joint Legislative Committee on Government Consolidation and Shared Services commences its
deliberations on these matters. For many years the League has encouraged both intra- and inter-municipal
cooperation to improve efficiency and effectiveness. Through education, sharing of ideas and collaboration, we
have encouraged increasing levels of cooperation among our members. The many municipalities that have
created formal and informal cooperative agreements are a testament to municipal efforts to achieve these
objectives.

Municipal Consolidation
The League:

1. Supports the rights of all New Jersey citizens to self-determination, to choose the type, form and size of
their government, as set forth in the 1947 State Constitution; as a result, the League strongly opposes
any efforts to mandate consolidation;

2. Recognizes individual idiosyncratic choices by municipal residents and their duly elected

representatives for varying services and levels of service;
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Seeks clear and accurate fiscal analyses that truthfully and forthrightly estimate real costs and benefits of
municipal consolidation so voters fully understand the consequences of their choices;

Understands from the experience in the Princetons that residents periodically value other things as much
or more than the reduction of the cost of municipal services and property taxes;

Supports DCA’s technical assistance role in the consolidation process and providing the department
with the support to perform this function; and,

Encourages legislation that will simplify and enable voluntary mergers or consolidations as embodied in
Assembly Bill 51 and League’s proposed modifications.

Joint or Shared Services

The League:

1.

w

10.

11.

12.

Recognizes that in a number of circumstances growth, merger, joint services and other actions that
appear in a vacuum; i.e., economies of scale; to save tax dollars actually cost more than current
operating procedures;

Supports the former REDI and REAP grant programs to encourage joint municipal services and supports
the current SHARE program,

Supports the provision of significant financial and other incentives to municipalities and other units of
local government to strongly encourage joint services (e.g., North Hudson Regional Fire Service) but
recognizes that it is vitally necessary to assure that the outcomes will be worth the considerable State
investment required to effect these changes;

Supports DCA’s expedited review process of SHARE grant applications;

Supports DCA’s emphasis on implementation grants over feasibility studies and other grant categories;
Recognizes the real value of shared municipal services is achieved on a multi-jurisdictional scale with a
positive cost benefit ratio without losing the customer service connection to individual municipal needs;
Supports providing counties with initial financial support to fund county or regional joint service
coordinators to encourage similar efforts to those extant in Somerset County;

Supports provisions contained in Assembly Bill 51 and the League proposed modifications to remove
impediments present in current statutes and simplify the statutory requirements and processes, including
eliminating NJDOP jurisdiction in non-NJDOP municipalities and requiring the hiring of all existing
health agency personnel when merging agencies;

Encourages removal of limitations on a governing body’s or school board’s ability to outsource,
privatize, lay-off or in other ways reduce the cost of services which adversely affect government’s
ability to respond to local citizen demands;

Recognizes that many joint services have failed to materialize due to perceived and/or real initial
increased costs for one or more of the municipalities included in the intended joint service;

Recognizes the unwillingness of municipal officials to accept additional mandated costs to effect a joint
service as was contained in the original version of Assembly Bill 51, e.g. added benefits for police and
police chiefs in a shared services or joint meeting venture;

Recognizes that on average personnel and related (health insurance, unemployment insurance, workers
compensation insurance, pension, FICA, Medicare, etc.) costs compose more than 70% of municipal
budgets and that in order to achieve any real savings all decision makers must recognize that reductions
in force including attrition, resignations and layoffs will be very undesirable, yet necessary, outcomes;

a. Recognizes the primary driver of increased municipal personnel costs are found in the collective
bargaining environment designed by the Legislature of this State over the past 38 years;

26 x
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b. Recognizes that the reason that New Jersey pays the highest amount per police officer in the
United States is not primarily due to the generosity of local elected officials;

c. Recognizes that at the local level public safety employees with the benefit of mandatory interest
arbitration and school district employees are typically the highest paid employees; and

d. Recognizes that no property tax relief or reform will be sustainable until and unless these salaries
can be contained; and

e. Recognizes that all other municipal salary increases derive their increases from these.

13. Hopes that through voluntary shared services joint use of personnel might reduce the current costs
associated with providing basic services.

You have a great opportunity to do something of great and lasting value for all of our fellow citizens. Again, we

offer you our assistance. And we urge you to accept the offer.
We thank you for your willingness to take on this thankless task. And we wish you well.

William G. Dressel, Jr.
Executive Director

WGD/sc



	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	



